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AUDITORS REPORT

To the Chairman and Members of the Board of Directors of
Annapolis Valley District Health Authority

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Annapolis Valley District Health Authority

as at March 31, 2001 and the statements of operations, changes in fund balances and cash
flows for the three-month period then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the District
Health Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable  assurance

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportina the amounts and disclosures in the
financial  statements. An audit aso includes assessina the accounting principles used anc

significant  estimates made by management, as  well as evaluating the overall financia
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the
financial position of the District Health Authority as at March 31, 2001 and the results of its
operations, chanaes in fund balances and cash flows for the three-month period then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants

June 15, 2001
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Operations
Three-month period ended March 31, 2001

Operating Capital
Fund Fund Total
Revenue
Department of Health funding. . ................. $ 14,366,415 $ - $ 14,366,415
Department of Veteran'sAffairs. .................. 379,377 379,377
Patient SErViCeS. . . ... oo 542,275 --- 542,275
Physicianfunding . ........... ... .. ... ... ... ..., 176,727 176,727
Programrecoveriesandsales. .. .................. 389,969 389,969
Amortization of deferred capital grants. ............ 864,000 864,000
Other . ... 13,312 21,514 34,826
15,868,075 885,514 16,753,589
Expenses
Administrationand support . . . ... .. 517,254 517,254
Addictionservices. .. ........... i 320,309 320,309
Diagnosticimaging . . ............. ... ... 772,085 772,085
Environmental services. ............ ... . ... 720,201 720,201
Finance. ........ ... .. . 167,457 167,457
Food & nutritional services. ..................... 799,854 799,854
Healthreqgistry ....... ... .. 390,239 390,239
HUMan resourCeS . . .. ..ot 139,828 --- 139,828
Informationservices. . ........... .., 279,037 279,037
Laboratory . . ... 1,024,135 1,024,135
Materidlsmanagement. . . ............. ... .. ... 403,134 403,134
Mental health. . ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..... 959,399 959,399
NUMSING. .« oo e 6,705,791 6,705,791
Pharmacy . .......... .. 150,529 150,529
Plant and support services. .. .............. ... ... 1,144,710 1,144,710
PublicHealth........ ... ... ... ... ... ......... 326,974 326,974
Rehabilitationservices. . ........................ 320,478 320,478
Other programs. . ... ....covt it 266,483 266,483
Retirement allowances. . ........... ..., 14,428 --- 14,428
Depreciation. .. ............ .. 940,149 940,149
Other. . ... 471,241 471,241
15,893,566 940,149 16,833,715
Deficiency of revenues over expenses. . .. ........... $ (25,491) % (54,635) $ (80,126)
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Financial Position
asat March 31, 2001

ASSETS
Operating Capital
Fund Fund Total
Current
Cash and cash equivalents (Page 8) . .............. $ 1,802,580 $ 1,075,878 $ 2,878,458
Accountsreceivable (Note4). . .................. 7,560,925 485,016 8,045,941
INVeNtory . ... e 892,845 892,845
Prepaid eXpenses . . ... oo 206,252 46,756 253,008
10,462,602 1,607,650 12,070,252
Lona-term assets (Note5) .. ............oovin... 93,619 --- 93,619
Property, plant and equipment (Note6) ............. 46,448,898 46,448,898
$___10556.221 $___48.056.548 $ 58.612,769
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities(Note8) ........... ... ... ... $ 8,287,340 $ 33,011 $ 8,320,351
Current portion of long-term debt (Note9) .......... 29,440 29,440
Revenuereceivedinadvance. . .. .................. 2,294,372 2,294,372
10,581,712 62,451 10,644,163
Long-term debt (Note9)................ --- 97,317 97,317
Deferred capital grants (Note 10). . . . .. — 46,310,183 46,310,183
10,581,712 46,469,951 57,051,663
FUND BALANCES
Restricted (Page 7). . . ... .o 243,341 243,341
Unrestricted (Page7) . . ... (25,491) 1,343,256 1,317,765
(25,491) 1,586,597 1,561,106
$ 10,556,221 $ 48,056,548 $ 58,612,769

Commitments (Note 11)
Contingency (Note 15)
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Changesin Fund Balances
Three-month period ended March 31, 2001

Operating Capital
Fund Fund Total
Restricted Fund Balances
Balance, beainning of period. .. ................. $ - $ - $
Restricted fund balance transferred from
Western Regional Health Board (Note2) .......... 243,341 243,341
Balance,endof period. .. ............ .. ... ... .., 243,341 243,341
Unrestricted Fund Balances
Balance, beainning of period. ... ..................
Unrestricted fund balance transferred from
Western Regional HealthBoard . . .. ............. 1,397,891 1,397,891
Deficiency of revenues over expenses
(PagED). . oo (25,491) (54,635) (80,126)
Balance,end of period . ............ .. ... .. ..... (25,491) 1,343,256 1,317,765
Total FundBalances. . ......................... $ (25,491) $ 1,586,597 $ 1,561,106
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statements of Cash Flows
Three-month period ended March 31, 2001

Net inflow (outflow) of cash related
to the following activities:

Operating
Deficiency of revenues over expenses (page 5)
Adijusted for:

Depreciation (Pageb5). ..............coeiun...
Amortization (Page5). .. ......................
Chanaes in working capital items (Note 13) ... .......

Financing
Assumption of long-term debt from Western

Regional HealthBoard .................
Proceeds from capital arants (Note 10). ... ...

Repavment of lono-termdebt. . ............
Net increase in restricted fund balances from

Western Regional HealthBoard ..........

Net increase in unrestricted fund balances from

Western Regional HealthBoard . ................

Investing
Investment in long-term assets from Western

Regional HealthBoard .................

Investment in long-term assets. .. ..........
Net capital assets of the Western Regional
HealthBoard ........................

Acquisition of property, plan and equipment. . .

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant anc

eQUIDMENT . ... .

Net cash inflow, being cash and cash

equivalentsat end of period. .............

- (47,267,628)
(190,816)

--- 69,397

Operating Capital
Fund Fund Total
(25,491) $ (54,635) $ (80,126)
940,149 940,149
(864,000) (864,000)
1,921,690 (498,761) 1,422,929
1,896,199 (477,247) 1,418,952
134,119 134,119
47,174,183 47,174,183
(7,362) (7,362)
243,341 243,341
1,397,891 1,397,891
48,942,172 48,942,172
(92,328) (92,328)
(1,291) (1,291)

(47,267,628)
(190,816)

69,397

(93,619) _ (47,389,047)

(47,482,666)

1,802,580 $ 1075878 $

2,878,458
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Notesto the Financial Statements
Three-month period ended March 31, 2001

DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION

The Annapolis Valley District Health Authority was formed by an Act of the Province of Nova Scotia
as assented to by the Lieutenant Governor, on June 8, 2000 The Act came into force by

proclamation of the Lieutenant Governor on January 1, 2001. The District Health Authority's mission
is to maintain and improve the headth and well-being of those we service throughout an
integrated and accessible health system.

The facilities owned and operated by the District Health Authority are Annapolis Community Health
Centre, Eastern Kinas Memorial Community Heath Centre, Soldiers Memorial Hospital anc
Valey Reaional Hospital. In addition, the District Health Authority leases space to operate
certain programs at the Western Kings Memorial Health Centre and other locations throughout
Annapolis and Kinas counties for the delivery of certain programs and services and supports five (5)
Community Health Boards.

TRANSFER OF ASSETS, LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

Assets, liabilities and fund balances of the Western Regional Health Board as at December 31, 2000
were transferred in accordance with the allocation methodoloay approved by the Department
of Health to the Annapolis Valley District Health Authority effective January 1, 2001, as follows:

Operating Capital

Fund Fund Total

Cash and cash equivalents. .. ................ $ 2,404,604 $ 385,851 $ 2,790,455
Accountsreceivable. . .......... ... L 5,615,847 478,170 6,094,017
INVENLOTY . ..ot 1,013,301 1,013,301
Prepaid eXpenses. . .. ... 345,465 52,899 398,364
Lono-termassetS. . . ... .o 92,328 92,328
Property, plant and equipment (net book value). . . . 47,267,628 47,267,628
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . ... ..... (7.265,388) (512,020) (7,777,408)
Current portion of long-termdebt . .. ............ (29,440) (29,440)
Revenuereceivedinadvance. . .. ............... (2,206,157) (2,206,157)
Long-termdebt . . ........ . (104,679) (104,679)
Deferred capital arants. ... ................... (45,897,177) (45,897,177)
Restricted fund balance. . . .................... --- (243,341) (243,341)
Unrestricted fund balance. . ................... --- (1,397,891) (1,397,891)
B ) - $

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting policies and include the following sianificant accountina policies:

a) Fund Accounting

Revenue and expenses related to program delivery and administration are reported in the
Operatina  Fund. The Capital Fund, reports the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
related to the Annapolis Valley District Health Authority's capital assets and special purposes anc
endowment funds.
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b) Revenue Recognition

The Annapolis Valley District Health Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions. Restricted contributions are recoanized as revenue of the appropriate func
in the vear in which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are
recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund when received or receivable, if the
amount to be received can be estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Endowment
contributions are recoanized as direct increases in the restricted Capital Fund balances.

Restricted investment income is recoanized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the
vear in which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted investment income i<
recoanized as revenue when earned.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment

Purchased capital assets are recorded in the Capitad Fund a cost. Contributed
capital assets are recorded in the Capital Fund at fair value at the date of contribution. Capital assets
transferred in under Note 2 are recorded at original costs less accumulatec
depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis at the following annual rates:

Land improvements 5-10%
Building and building service equipment 2.5-10%
Equipment 5-20%
Equipment under capital lease 5-20%

d) Deferred Capital Grants
Deferred  contributions  reported in the Capital Fund include grant revenue received
from external sources restricted for the purchase of capital assets. Amortization of
deferred capital arants is recoanized as revenue on the same basis as depreciation of
the related assets.

e) Inventory

Inventories are recorded at the lower of average cost and replacement cost, and include
medical/suraical, druas, and other general inventory.

ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE

Operating Capital

Fund Fund Total

Department of Health
Operatingfunding. .. ..................... $ 5,948,360 $ - $ 5,948,360
Transition supportprogram . . . ............... 211,463 211,463
Capitalgrants. . ..............ciiinenn. 357,324 357,324
Department of Veteran'sAffairs. ............... 42,856 42,856
PatientCare. . ...t 572,153 572,153
HSTrebates. . ......cvii i 305,505 24,186 329,691
Homecare/VON. . ........... . i, 110,266 --- 110,266
Charitable foundations . ... ................... 63,747 103,506 167,253
Psychiatricrecoveries. . ...................... 143,504 143,504
Federal grant funding. . ....................... 33,164 33,164
Other ... . 129,907 129,907
$ 7,560,925 $ 485,016 $ 8,045,941

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS



LONG-TERM ASSETS

Long-term assets are comprised of employee advances to accommodate the change in pay
dates, as aresult of payroll conversions.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Accumulated Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value

Land and land improvements. .. ............ $ 381,421 $ 202,035 $ 179,386
Building and building service equipment . . . .. ... 58,171,341 17,375,017 40,796,324
Equipment .. ... ... ... ... 30,174,259 24,885,983 5,288,276
Eaquipment under capital lease. .. ............. 716,308 531,396 184,912
$___89.4433290 $__ 42994431 $ 46,448,898

BANK INDEBTEDNESS

The District Health Authority has available operating lines of credit with a Canadian chartered bank
totalling $4.1 million. As well, the District Health Authority has available a capital line of credit in the amount
of $1,025,000 with a Canadian chartered bank. As of March 31, 2001, interest

charoges on any overdraft accounts are prime less 0.75%. There were no amounts
owing on these lines at March 31, 2001.

ACCOUNTSPAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Operating Capital

Fund Fund Total
Tradepavables. ... ....................... $ 1,366,915 $ 18,297 $ 1,385,212
Accrued liabilities. ........................ 695,679 14,714 710,393
Vacation Pay. . . .o vt 3,547,114 3,547,114
Salary and benefits. .. ........... ... L 2,426,952 2,426,952
Other . ... e 250,680 250,680
$ 8.287.340 $ 33.011 $ 8,320,351

LONG-TERM DEBT
Obligations Under Capital Leases - interest at 0%, maturingin2006.............. $ 126,757
CUITENE POITI 0N .« . o st e e e e e e (29,440)

s___ ora17

Estimated minimum principal repayments over the next five years are expected to be as
follows:

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

$ 29,440 $ 29,441 $ 29,441 $ 29,441 $ 8,994
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS

Balance, beainning Of Vear . .. ...t $ -
Transferred from Western Reaional HealthBoard. . ... ........................ 45,897,177
Grant received for:
Capital assetspurchased. . . . ... . e 150,757
Future capital asset purchases . . . ...ttt e e e 1,126,249
47,174,183
Amortization of deferred capital grants. .. ........... ... ... .. (864,000)
Balance, end Of Vear. . . . ... ..o e $ 46,310,183

COMMITMENTS

L eases and Purchase Commitments

The Annapolis Valley District Health Authority has committed funds from operations for the purchase
of  film, occupancy and equipment leases. Estimated minimum lease payments  anc
film purchases over the next five vears are expected to be as follows:

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
$ 319,650 $ 302,828 $ 269,753 $ 167,929 $ 167,929
PENSION PLAN

The Annapolis Valley District Health Authority contributes to two pension plans on behaf of its
employees. The first plan is administered by the Nova Scotia Association of Health
Organizations. The most recent actuarial valuation was conducted as at December 31, 1998
and showed an unfunded liability for the entire plan of $nil. The second plan is administerec
by the Province of Nova Scotiaa The most recent actuarial valuation was conducted as at
December 31, 1999 and showed an unfunded liability for the entire plan of $nil. The Annapolis
Valley District Health Authority bears no financial responsibility for any unfunded liability of either
plan.

CHANGESIN WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS

Operating Capital
Fund Fund Total
Accountsreceivable. . .......... ... . $ (7,560,925) % (485,016) $ (8,045,941)
INVENtOry. . ..ot (892,845) (892,845)
Prepaid expenses. . .. ......... ... (206,252) (46,756) (253,008)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . ... ... 8,287,340 33,011 8,320,351
Revenuereceivedinadvance. ... ............. 2,294,372 2,294,372
$ 1,921,690 $ (498,761) $ 1,422,929

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA RETIRING ALLOWANCE PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYEES
OF HEALTH CARE FACILITIES

The Province of Nova Scotia Retiring Allowance Program for Health Care Facilities provides benefits
for employees of the Western Regional Health Board (District Health Authority (#1), District Health
Authority (#2), and District Health Authority (#3)) upon retirement. The most recent actuarial
valuation was for the vears ended March 31, 1998; March 31, 1999; and March 31, 2000.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
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15.

16.

Financial position of the entire program was as follows:

Continuity Schedule 2000-2001 1999-2000 1998-1999

Liability, April 1, Beginning of Year........... $ 7,611,700 $ 6,578,200 $ 5,655,800

Current ServiceCostS . . .. .o vii it 445,500 413,600 382,400

Interest on Liability. . ...................... 528,600 458,700 396,100

Current Year (Gain)Loss. .................. 161,200 143,900

Liability, March 31, Endof Year. ............. $ 8,585,800 $ 7,611,700 $ 6,578,200
(estimated)

Significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the financial position of the program as at
March 31, 2000 were based on information provided by the Nova Scotia Association of Health
Organizations ("NSAHO"). The discount rate used was 6.56%.

All accumulated past liabilities from the retiring allowance proaram that relate directly to emplovees
of the Western Reaional Health Board will be fully funded by the Province of Nova Scotia, up to anc
including March 31, 2001. As a result, this liability has not been recorded in the financial statements. On
a go forward basis, the financial position of the retiring allowance program will be funded by
operations of the appropriate District Health Authority, that being one of District Health Authority
(#1), District Health Authority (#2), or District Health Authority (#3).

CONTINGENCY

The Annapolis Valley District Health Authority has yet to reach a collective agreement with the

employees of the Nova Scotia Nurses Union. The most recent collective agreement expirec

October 31, 2000. Although aretroactive wage adiustment is likely to cover the period from October 31, 2000

to March 31, 2001, it has been determined that such an amount can not be reasonably estimated basec
on information available prior to the release of the financial statements. As a result, the financial
statements do not include a provision for this contingent liability. The Department of Health has aareec
to fully fund any such liability on behalf of the Annapolis Valley District Health Authority.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

No comparative figures have been shown in the financial statements as this is the first period of
operations for the District Health Authority.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
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AUDITORS REPORT

To the Chairman and Members of
Annapolis Valley Regiona School Board

We have examined the Consolidated, Operatina Fund, Capita Fund, Reserve Fund anc
Trust Fund balance sheets of the Annapolis Valley Reaional School Board
as at March 31, 2001, and the statements of operations for the vear
ended. These financia statements are the responsibility of the Board's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with oaeneraly accepted auditing standards. Thest
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial dstatements are free of materiad  misstatement. An audit includes
examining on a test bass, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in  the
financia  statements. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as wel as evauatina the overal financid
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financia statements present fairly, in al materiad respects, the
financial position of the Board as at March 31, 2001, and results of its
operations and the chanoes in its capital position for the vear then ended in accordance
with generally accepted accountina principles adopted for Nova Scotia School Boards.

MACKENZIE, MORSE AND BREWSTER
Chartered Accountants

Berwick, Nova Scotia
May 29, 2001
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Consolidated Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001

ASSETS
2001 2000
Current
Cash $ 610,618 $ 5,550
Receivables
Provinceof NovaScotia. .. ........cooviiiiiiiiinn, 1,389,120 6,233,965
GovtofCanada. . ...t e 1,183,359 792,216
Other school boards. . ... et 214,351 289,886
OthEr . oo 510.862 1.367.241
Current portion Of NOtE. ... ..ottt 32,627
DuefromTrust Funds. .. .......... i 6,461 18,465
Prepaid eXPeNSES . . ..o oo 7,026 43,159
{10177 0100 =< 121,410 119,459
4,043,207 8,902,568
Restricted cash & investments(Note2) .............ocvvviinn... 76,181 34,560
Fixed assets at cost
School property & equipment (Note1) . ..................... 82,550,963 81,796,859
School buses & other vehicles(Note1). ...................... 4,884,426 4,592,652
$ 91554777 $ 95,326,639
LIABILITIES
Current
Bank Indebtedness. . ...t $ - $ 5,310,592
Payables and accruals
Trade. ..o 1,128,454 1,386,403
Other . .o 1,405,565 840,623
Deferred Revenue. . ... 794,195 754,166
3,328,214 8,291,784
Commitment to Early Retirement Proaram (Note3). ............... 18,526,149
Term Debt
Capital Lease (NOtEB). . ..o e ettt e 121,887 266,639
3,450,101 27,084,572
EQUITY
Investment in Capital ASSELS. .. ... it 87,313,502 86,122,872
Surplus (Deficit) - NonRestricted . . .. ... ... 104,209
Surplus - Restricted (Cafeteria) . .. ..o oo i 76,181 34,560
RESEIVES . . oottt 610,784 610,784
Deficiency in Early Retirement Proaram . .. ............. ... (18.526.149)
88,104,676 68,242,067
$ 91,554,777 $ 95,326,639
Contingencies (Note 6)
Commitments (Note 8)

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Statement of Operations
for the vear ended March 31, 2001

2001
Page Budaet Actual 2000 Actual
Revenue
Province of NovaScotia.......... 21 3 69,600,972 $ 70,226,426 73,798,491
Governmentof Canada. .......... 21 684,946 701,243 665,477
Appropriations from Councils. . . ... 21 14,532,432 14,532,618 14,528,569
Board Operations. .. ............. 21 2,961,936 4,392,176 3,504,178
Transfer fromReserves. . ......... 606,071 116,385
88,386,357 89,852,463 92,613,100
Expenditures
Reaqiona Board Management .. ... .. 22 2,385,487 2,328,012 2434110
School Admin. & Instruction. . ... .. 22 59,204,675 59,445,367 60,528,973
School Cafeterias. ............... 23 1,063,481 1,152,538 1,070,626
Property Services. .. ............. 23 7,418,567 7,388,985 8,032,549
Pupil Transportation............. 23 6,254,172 6,258,323 6,497,591
Special Education. . .............. 24 9,895,074 9,865,734 9,691,064
Adult Education. ................ 24 1,220,741 1,742,476 1,612,278
Federal Programs. ............... 24 21,006 47,856 60,968
Capital Purchases. .. ............. 24 923,154 1,518,963 1,605,972
Debt ServiceCosts. .. ............ 24 92,797
Prior Year'sDeficit .. ............. --- 389,234
88,386,357 89,748,254 92,016,162
Excess of revenue over
expenditure before transfer tc
FESEIVES . ..t --- 104,209 596,938
Transfertoreserves. ............. (596,938)
Excess of revenue
over expenditure. . . . . ) - $ 104,209
Statement of Continuity of Surplus (Deficit)
for the year ended March 31, 2001
2001 2000
Balance, beginningof period .. .......... i $ (389,234)
Transfer tocurrent operations. .. ... v 389,234
Excessof revenueover expenditures. . .......... . oL, 104,209
Balance, end of PENOd. .. ..o oot $ 104,209

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Operatinag Fund Balance Sheet

asat March 31, 2001

ASSETS

Current

Cash $

Receivables
Provinceof NovaScotia. .. .........ccoviiiiinn...
Governmentof Canada. . ...

DuefromCapital Fund .. ......... ... ... ... ... .. .....
DuefromTrustFunds. . ...t
INVENtOries, @l CoOSt. . .. oottt et

Prepaid eXpENSES . . o i e

Restricted cash & Investments(Note2) . ..........coviiiinn..

LIABILITIES

Current

Bank Indebtedness. . . ... $

Payables and accruas

DuetoReserveFund . ...
Commitment of ERP(NoOte3) .. ..ot

Surplus - Restricted (Cafeteria) .. ..o
Surplus - NonRestricted . . .....ovi i
Deficiency INERP . . ...

Continaencies (Note 6)
Commitments (Note 8)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2001 2000
610.618 5,550
1,220,865 6,058,800
1,183,359 792,216
214,351 289,886
510,862 1.367.241
--- 32,627
168,255 175,165
6,461 18,465
121.410 119,459
7.026 43.159
4,043,207 8,902,568
76,181 34,560
4,119,388 8,937,128
--- 5,310,592
1,128,454 1,386,403
1,405,565 840,623
794,195 754,166
3,328,214 8,291,784
610,784 610,784
— 18,526,149
3.938.998 27428717
76,181 34,560
104.209 ---
--- (18.526.149)
180.390 (18.491.589)
4,119,388 8,937,128
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Capital Fund Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001

ASSETS
2001 2000
Accounts Receivable
DuefromProvinceof NS. ... ...t $ 168,255 $ 175,165
Fixed assets, at cost
Land, buildinasand improvements(Note1) ... ................ 74,139,146 73,496,635
Eaquipment and furnishings. . .. ... 8,411,817 8,300,224
School busesand other vehicles. . .......................... 4,884,426 4,592,652
$ 87,603.644 $ 86,564,676
LIABILITIES
Duetooperatinafund. ............coi i $ 168,255 $ 175,165
Term debt
Capital Lease (NOte4) . ... oot e 121,887 266,639
EQUITY
Investmentincapital assetS. .. .. ..o 87,313,502 86,122,872
$ 87,603,644 $ 86,564,676
Statement of Continuity in Investment in Capital Assets
for the vear ended March 31, 2001
Balance, bedginninaof period . ........... .. $ 86,122,872 $ 88,605,935
Capital Expenditures:
Land, Buildinas & Improvements
Capital Grant, LEShaw Proiect .................cvivn... 10.618
Capital Grant RenovationProjects . ..., 76
10,694
Capital expenditures from operating:
School bUSES . . ..o 600,600 421,232
Eaquipment and furnishinas. .. ...t 256,346 386,792
Land, buildina & Improvements .............. ..., 642,510 768,292
1,499,456 1,576,316
Retirement of debt:
DEbt . . 89,014
89,014
Retirement of fixed assets:
Disposal of Building. . ... (4,040,442)
School bUSES . . .. oo (308,826) (118,645)
1,190,630 (2,483,063)
Balance, end of period . ...t $ 87.313502 $ 86,122,872

The accompanyina notes are an intearal part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Reserve Fund Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001

ASSETS
2001 2000
DuefromOperatinaFund . ...t $ 610,784 610,784
$ 610,784 610,784
EQUITY

Special Capital .. ..o e $ 96,938 96,938

Reserves for proaram enhancement:
School BusDispoSal .. ..o ot e 9,132 9,132
KCDSB HISIONY . ..ot e e e e 2,000 2,000
Prof. Development -Kings. . .. ..o 2,714 2,714
Future OpErations. . . .. oottt e 500,000 500,000
$ 610,784 610,784

Statement of Continuity of Reserves
For thevear ended March 31, 2001

Baance at Transfers from Transferstc Baance at
March 31,2000 Operatine Operatine March 31, 2001
Special Capital .. ................ $ 96,938 § - $ 96,938
School BusDisposal ............. 9,132 9,132
KCDSBHistory . ................ 2,000 2,000
Prof. Development - Kings. . .. ..... 2,714 2,714
Future Operations. .. ............. 500,000 --- 500,000
$ 610,784 % - $ 610,784

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Investments, atcost. . ............

Due from (to) operating account

Trust funds (Note5). ............

Balance, bedinning of period. . .. ...
Donationsreceived . .............
Interestearned. .................
Disbursements.................

Balance, end of period. . ..........

Trust Funds Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001

ASSETS
2001 2000
........................... $ 626476 $ 554,686
........................... 3,700 3,700
........................... (6,461) (18,465)
$ 623,715 $ 539,921

EQUITY
........................... $ 623,715 $ 539,921

Statement of Trust Funds
for thevyear ended March 31, 2001

........................... $ 539,921 $ 473,581
........................... 226,907 112,691
........................... 34,854 23,737
............................ (177,967) (70,088)
........................... $ 623,715 $ 539,921

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Supplementary Detail of Revenues
for the vear ended March 31, 2001

2001
Budaet Actual 2000 Actual
PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA
General Formula. . ........... ... ... ... .. ... 3 63,068,100 $ 63,092,673 $ 62,857,912
Special education. ... 4,862,300 4,837,727 4,862,300
Textbook Allocation. . ............coovivvnn... 865,000 865,000 750,600
Frenchspecial proiect . ....................... 12,000 13,791 13,439
Frenchlmmersion. ........................... 67,972 58,035 37,083
Buspurchasearant ... ..........ccovvvniinn... 600,600 600,600 600,600
Emeraency capital arants. . ................... 140,000
Other. . ... 125,000 758,600 4,536,557
) 69,600,972 $ 70,226,426 $ 73,798,491
GOVERNMENT OF CANADA
Human Resources Development . ............... 3 238476 $ 231,092 $ 316,864
Nativestudents. . ..., 200,875 216,764 171,292
Secretary of State:
Minority Lanquage . . ..................... 42,400 26,379 33,024
French Specia Projects. . .................. 33,265 81,923 52,809
Frenchlmmersion......................... 169,930 145,085 92,039
Other. . ... (551)
) 684,946 $ 701,243 $ 665,477
APPROPRIATIONS FROM COUNCILS
Mandatory
Town of AnnapolisRoval .................. 3 82,738 $ 82,738 $ 80,319
Townof Berwick .. ......... ..., 317,579 317,579 328,055
Town of Bridaetown. . ..................... 126,051 126,051 109,501
Townof Hantsport. .. ...............oov... 180,508 180,508 182,898
Townof Kentville. . ....................... 819,527 689,213 791,591
Townof Middleton . .. .................... 235,443 235,443 255,964
Townof Windsor . ..............ccovvvn., 480,434 480,448 480,040
Townof Walfville........................ 427,621 427,793 444,181
Municipality of Annapolis. ................. 2,332,224 2,332,224 2.333.416
Municipality of Kings. .................... 7,907,611 8,037,925 7,930,422
Municipality of WestHants. . ............... 1,622,696 1,622,696 1,592,182
) 14532432 $ 14,532,618 $ 14,528,569
BOARD OPERATIONS
Investmentinterest. .. ..., 3 35000 $ 126,498 $ 12,798
Cafeterias. . ..o 1,063,481 1,138,524 1,055,873
Adult Education Fees& Revenues. .. ............ 811,133 1.461.974 988,210
FacilityandBusRental ....................... 5,000 7.286 21,134
Saleof ASSELS. . ..o 6,500 5,519 576
Other Fees& revenues. . .............ccovun.. 1,040,822 1,652,375 1,425,587
) 2,961,936 $ 4392176 $ 3,504,178

The accompanyina notes are an intearal part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Supplementary Details of Expenditures

for the vear ended March 31, 2001

REGIONAL BOARD MANAGEMENT

SalariesandWages. . ...
BoardMemberexpense. . .......... ...,
Emploveebenefits. . ........... ... L.
Suppliesand materials. .......................

Telephore. . . ..

Travel and conference-staff. . .................
Travel and conference-board .. ................

Insurance. . . . ..
Professional fees

Contracted SErvices . .. ..o oo i
Office Rental & Maintenance. . .................
Advertisinag and Promotion. . ..................

Eaquipment Contracts. .. ...,

NSSBA & Other

Dues& Fees..................

In-Service & Prof. Development . ...............
Occupational Hedlth & Safety. .................

Bank charaes. . .

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION & INSTRUCTION
Sdaries and Wages
Administration. .. .......... .. i

Instructional.

Substitutes. . .

Professional Development. . ...................

Service Awards.

Suppliesand Materials. .. ...,

Inservice trainina

Conferencearants. . .........coviiinnnnnn.
Travel andconferences. . ............oovvenn..

Telephore. . . ..

COmMPULEr SEIVICES. . o oo v vt et
Textbook Allocation. . ...............cooviu...

2001

Budoet Actual 2000 Actual
1,351,508 $ 1,356,723 $ 1,250,575
110,400 110,099 107,258
84,982 94,932 172,735
107,840 99,823 112,338
36,464 40,936 11,349
44,294 25,035 49,178
36,300 33,812 50,740
114,180 114,180 104,250
97,150 94,071 117,010
10,213 9,361 20,914
166,847 166,860 150,523
44,100 26,367 48,949
4,500 3,566 4,418
48,312 44,545 87,768
5,100 6,674 15,447
16,073 7,378 80,285
68,100 69,796 34,843

25,000 8.641

14,124 15,213 15,530
2385487 $ 2,328,012 $ 2,434,110
4,787,990 $ 5010776 $ 4,805,847
40,959,810 40,286,972 40,436,483
1,762,000 1,918,184 1,931,360
222,000 210,000 364,026
703,095 700,202 696,382
876,260 876,260 901,609
1.682.897 1,803,989 1,586,062
1,486,661 1,460,977 1,457,310
3,218,787 3,119,024 3,109,576
434,800 335,441 457,300
240,000 278,843 1,071,662
1,175,816 1,313,948 1,501,421
62,900 89,864 182,526
113,000 125,672 88,247
119,839 116,903 162,239
248,886 259,252 226,746
180,385 189,820 294,486
865,000 865,000 865,000
6,094 26,227 60,086
58,455 458,013 330,605
59,204,675 $ 59,445,367 $ 60,528,973

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Supplementary Details of Expenditures (continued)

for the vear ended March 31, 2001

2001
Budoet Actual 2000 Actual

SCHOOL CAFETERIAS
SalariesandWages. . ... 3 333814 $ 370,440 $ 343,290
EmploveeBenefits. .. ..., 39,667 39,746 38,897
Foodand materials. . ..o, 690,000 742,352 688,439

) 1063481 $ 1,152538 $ 1,070,626
PROPERTY SERVICES
Rental of FacilitiesP3. ....................... $ - % - $ 684,000
Salariesandwages. . .. ... 2,270,366 2,242,914 2,205,129
Employeebenefits. ............ .. ... L. 347,776 344,361 336,863
Suppliesand materials. . ..., 694,000 567,136 778.295
In-Service & Prof. Development . ............... 90 416 299
Travel andconferences. . ..........ccovvvnenn.. 60,487 50,623 59,971
INSUFANCE . .« o vttt e ettt 187.975 188,075 170,887
Utilities. ..o 2,175,620 2,282,147 1,952,053
Contracted services- Maintenance. .. ........... 259,500 216,989 291,398
Contracted services- Custodial. . ............... 1,366,321 1,420,335 1,396,708
Telephone. ... 23,544 22,255 45,214
COomMpUtEr SENVICES. . .o oo e 300 177 13,190
Other EXpENSES . .. o oo 32,588 53,557 98,542

) 7418567 $ 7,388,985 $ 8,032,549
PUPIL TRANSPORTATION
SalariesandWages. . .......ooiiiii i 3 1,716,853 $ 1,766,025 $ 1,729,944
Emploveebenefits. ............ .. ... L. 267,251 280,272 246,270
Vehicle operatina:

Gasandoil............. i 171,883 236,629 160,951

TIrES. ottt 37.400 40,761 37.381

Repairsand maintenance . . ................. 258,312 265,103 157.226

Licenseandinsurance. ..............c.coovn.. 43,000 42,728 42 977

Suppliesand materials..................... 108,082 69,429 110,509
Maintenance and utilities:

GalaES. . oot e et 32,850 45,596 32,587
BusSitemaintenance. .. ..........c.cviiiinnn... 2,300 1,393 2,253
Travel & conferences. . ........ovviii i, 14,385 17,923 19,207
Contract CONVEYaNCE. . . ... oo e e ii i 3,559,104 3,504,434 3,965,033
Inservicetraining . ...........coviinnnnnn.. 6,700 7,727 4,870
Extra-curricular (Recoveries) .................. - (52,804) (48,709)
Televhone.............. i 10,752 11,064 11,565
Other ... 25,300 22,043 25,527

5 6,254,172 $ 6,258,323 $ 6,497,591

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Supplementary Details of Expenditures (continued)

for the vear ended March 31, 2001

2001
Budaet Actual 2000 Actual

SPECIAL EDUCATION
SalariesandWages. . ... 3 8,978,868 $ 8,916,325 8,851,038
Emploveebenefits. . ........... ... ... .. ... 783,347 811,937 667,382
Suppliesand materials. ....................... 61,843 41,831 75,073
Travel andconferences. . ...........coviiiinnt. 42,550 50,222 63,096
Teephone. . ... 14,116 12,255 10.435
In Service & Prof. Development. ............... 4,350 2,334 13,740
Other. ... 10,000 30,830 10,300

) 9,895,074 $ 9,865,734 9,691,064
ADULT EDUCATION
Saariesandwages. .. ... 3 854,479 $ 1,060,030 1,054,383
Employeebenefits. . ............. ... ... 62,650 80,724 80,426
Suppliesand materials. . ..., 90,100 225,483 191,374
Travel and conferences. . ..o, 23,800 43,190 48,458
FacilityRental ......... ... ... i, 86,000 126,365 125,099
Teephone. . ... 19,712 30,004 38,320
Inservice & Prof. Development . ................ 6,000 40,025 21,816
COmpULEr SEIVICES. . ..o v vttt 6,800 9,065 6,084
Advertising & Promotion. . .................... 19,200 23.824 46,298
Other. ... 52,000 103,766 20

5 1,220,741 $ 1,742,476 1,612,278
FEDERAL PROGRAMS
Co-opEducation. ............coviiiiii... $ 21,006 $ 47,856 8,232
ReadingRecovery ..., - 52,736

) 21,006 $ 47,856 60,968
DEBT SERVICE COST¢<
Principal . ... 3 - % 89,014
INtErest. . oo 3,783

) - $ 92,797
CAPITAL PURCHASES
Repair andrenovations. . ...................... 3 129,262 $ 642,510 768,292
Furnitureand equipment. . .................... 193,292 275,853 416,448
Transportation-buses. . ...................... 600,600 600,600 421,232

) 923,154 $ 1,518,963 1,605,972

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of these financial statements.
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ANNAPOLISVALLEY REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Notesto the Financial Statements
March 31, 2001

Summary of significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared to conform in all material respects to the accounting
principles prescribed by the Department of Education School Board Financial Handbook.

Financial statement presentation

The financial statements to the Board have been prepared in accordance with the fund basis of
accounting.

Basis of accounting

The financid statements have been prepared using the modified accrua basis of
accountina. Major revenue and expenditure items are recorded on the accrua basis. Teachers
salaries and those of non-teachina emplovees are recorded on the cash basis. No provision
is made for the accrua of service award credits earned. Outstandino purchase orders at the

bal ance sheet date are accrued and recorded as pavables.

School property, equipment, buses and other vehicles

School property, equipment and buses taken over from the Kings County District School
Board which were previoudy transferred from the Kinas County Amadaamated School
Board and the Town of Hantsport have been recorded at costs to the Amaloamated
Board and the Town respectively. Assets taken over from the Annapolis District School
Board and Hants West District School Board which were formerly held by municipa units
are recorded at their transferred amount.

Under the previous district school board adgreements for the Annapolis and Hants West
District  School Boards, al school buildinas and land on hand a December 31, 1981
remain assets of the municipa units but are under the operational control of the Board
until such time as the Board no lonaer requires the asset for school board purposes. At
that time control will revert back to the municipal units.

All major capita additions to school buildings on hand at December 31, 1981 and any new

school construction commencing after that date are assets of the Board. As a result, the
Board now has an interest in rea property to which it does not have title. Under the
Education Act, should a municipal unit sell a building returned to it by the school board
under the circumstances noted above, a portion of the proceeds will be payable to the

school board. In the event of the destruction of a buildina such that insurance proceeds are

pavable, a portion of these proceeds, related to the improvements, will similarly be pavable

to the school board.
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All capita additions and acquisitions since December 31, 1981 have been recorded a actud
cost. Depreciation is not beina recorded on the school buildinas, eauipment, buses or
other vehicles.

Restricted cash and investments

Schedule of restricted cash and investments: 2001 2000
Operating fund (pg. 17)

Surplus - Restricted (Cafeterias) ... ......coovvvnn.. $ 76,181 $ 34,560

Early Retirement Program

During the 2000-2001 fiscal year the Province of Nova Scotia assumed full responsibility for the
Early Retirement Plan (1994-1998).

Board Lease Liability

Lease Liahility

During 1998-99 the Annapolis Valey Regional School Board entered into two Capita

Lease Aareements for equipment purchases. The remaining commitments for subsequent vears are
asfollows:

2001-2002 $ 121,887

Trust funds

The Annapolis Valley Regional School Board manages a number of trust funds primarily
for the aeneration of scholarships and awards. The following is a summary of the trusts
and their activity during the vear. Effective April 1, 1997 the Board incorporated the
activities of the former Kinas County District School Board Foundation. These are now
carried as a separate Trust Account.
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Managed Trust Funds:

March 31,
2000

ACESTrust....... ...coovvnn. $ 3151 $
ARRA Library Trust ........... 5,793
Atkinson Trust................ 2,212
BarteauTrust..................
BatemanTrust..... ........... 1,097
BealsTrust........ ........... 120,137
BeattieTrust . ................. 10,491
BergevinTrust..... ...........
Blackburn Trust.... ........... 44
BordenTrust...... ........... 334
BrannonTrust.................
CaterTrust................... 6,796
Clacke.........  ...........
Coldwdl Trust..... ........... 5170
CummingsTrust............... 12,640
DatonTrust.................. 15,499
DeEll Trust........ ccovnnnn.. 52,518
EvansTrust...................
Haskell Trust...... ........... 22,036
Hibbard Trust................. 10,513
Horton Alumni..... ........... 2,328
HudginsTrust..... ........... 415
InglisTrust . .................. 21,203
Jones-BRES...... ........... 4,693
JonesBRHS.................. 14,113
JohnsonTrust..... ........... 11,198
KCAClosng........coovvvn..
KCDSB Trust(Warner). ......... 5051
LockhartTrust.................
LyonsTrust....... ........... 4,745
Margeson......... ...........
MacFarlane...................
MacNutt Trust . .... ........... 32,108
Mitchell Trust............... . 1,327
MRHS 40 th Ann. Trust. ....... 10,720
Nely Trust........ ........... 408
NixonTrust................... 4,948
Harry E. Parker Trust........... 2,789
RenaB.Parker Trust........... 37,659
Quartermain Trust.. ........... 333
RainforthTrust................ 413
Sinnott Trust . ................. 10,799
Earle Spicer Trust . ............. 22341
WorthylakeTrust..............

Funds held temporarily for redistribution:

Foundation................... 80,839

Additions Interest
- $ 159

70 34
125 124
5,082 206
21,939 7,510
1,204 47
2
14
870 24
375
6,191 165
291
718
3,020
973 35
1,000 1,286
126

23
1,195
295
2,599 926
5,000 212
64 291
1,999 75
267
2,302 3
8,407 244
800 1,860
76

4 607

23
500 300
1,580 224
2,120
1,464 56
24
1,056
15,648 617
149,086 6,366

Disburse- March 31,

ments 2001
$ 1,000 $ 2,310
6,197
350 2111
500 4,788
1,160
5,300 144,286
425 10,662
200 1,051
46
150 3438
894
500 6,671
6,356
225 5,236
500 12,858
625 15,760
150 858
1,000 23322
400 10,707
250 2,204
18 420
950 21,448
4,988
4,455 13,183
450 11,378
5212
5,406
500 1574
220 4792
2,305
8,651
1,000 33,768
60 1,343
400 10,931
8 423
250 5,498
200 4,393
1,740 38,039
600 1,253
437
500 10,908
850 22,547
2,000 14,265
152,191 84,100

$ 539921 $

226907 $ 34,854

$ 177,967 $ 623,715
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Contingencies

There are a number of clams and possible clams outstanding against the Board. The
outcomes of these clams ae not determinable and therefore no amounts have beer
recorded in the accounts of the Board. Anv settlements resultina from the resolution of
these claims will be treated as a charae to operations in the period the settlement occurs.

Pension Plan

The Board contributes to Registered Retirement Savings Plans and Registered Pension
Plans on behaf on the non-teachina emplovees. The Boards teachers are covered bv ¢
pension plan established by the Province pursuant to the Teacher's Pension Act

Commitments
Facility Rental

On March 5, 1997 the Annapolis Valley Regiona School Board accepted a proposal from
the Western Kinas Memoria Heath Centre for the provision of 17,000 square feet of
office space to house the regiona school board's administrative operations. Subsequently
the Board aso approved the acquisition of a further 1,000 square feet. The Board has
entered into a 10 vear lease for the facility and is committed to the following |ease payments

2001-2002 $ 135,000

2002-2003 $ 144,000 + prior vear CPI
2003-2004 Prior year rate + prior year CPI
2004-2005 Prior vear rate + prior year CPI
2005-2006 Prior vear rate + prior vear CPI
2006-2007 Prior vear rate + prior vear CPI

Addition

Durina 1999-2000. the Board acauired 1,248 souare feet of storage space in the buildino basement
for an annual flat rate of $5,000. As well, 2,160 additional sguare feet were acquired and renovatec

on the second floor for the duration of the oridinal lease term. This additional space is at the
rate of $10.00 per square foot with a minimum 3% annual increase.

P-3 Schools

The Board currently has three schools which were built and are operated under the
Public  Private Partnership  arrangement  with  the Province of Nova Scotia as
the lessee. The lease contains both a capita and operating component and all payments
are made by the Province to the Private Partner. Since school boards are aenerally
responsible  for  school operating  expenses, the Province recovers a  portion
of the operating lease payment from the Board. The recovery amount is deducted from
the Board's annual funding allocation before the funding is distributed. The recovery amount
for the 2000-01 fiscal vear was $883,900. The recovery amount for 1999-2000 was $684,000.
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AUDITOR'SREPORT

To the Governors and Members of the
Art Gallery of Nova Scotiz

We have audited the financial statements of the Art Gallery of Nova Scotia consisting of the following:
Art Gallery of Nova Scotia - Combined Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2001

Gallery, Gallery Shop,Product Development - Balance Sheet asat March 31, 2001
and Western Branch

Gdlery - Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Deficit for the year ended
March 31, 2001

Gallery Shop - Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Surplus for the year ended
March 31, 2001

Product Development - Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Surplus for the year ended
March 31, 2001

Western Branch - Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Surplus for the year ended
March 31, 2001

Endowment Fund - Balance Sheet asat March 31, 2001
- Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Surplus for the year ended
March 31, 2001

Phase || Expansion Fund - Balance Sheet asat March 31, 2001
- Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Deficit for the year ended
March 31, 2001

Acquisition Fund - Balance Sheet asat March 31, 2001
- Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Surplus for the year ended
March 31, 2001

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Gallery's management. Our
responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance

whether the financia statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as evauating the overal
financial statement presentation.

In common with many charitable organizations, the Art Gallery of Nova Scotia
derives revenues from donation receipts, special events, corporate campaigns,
admissions and other income, the completeness of which is not susceptible of
conclusive audit verification. Accordingly, we were unable to determine whether any
adjustments for unrecorded revenues might be necessary to revenue, excess
(deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year or surplus (deficit).

In our opinion, except for the effect of any adjustments which might have been
required had we been able to satisfy ourselves with respect to the revenue described
in the preceding paragraph, these financia statements present fairly, in al materia
respects, the financial position of the Art Gallery of Nova Scotia as a March 31,
2001 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

ERNST & YOUNGLLP
Chartered Accountants
Halifax, Canada
May 11, 2001
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ART GALLERY OF NOVA SCOTIA

Combined Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001

2001 2000
ASSETS

Current
Cashand cash eqQUIVAIENES. . . .. oo oottt e $ 1048260 $ 614,524
Accountsrecaivable. . ... .o 99,546 140,044
1177217/ 194,767 147,240
1,342573 901,808
Investments (market vaue - $3,007,982; 2000 - $3,517,977) (note5). ........ 2,527,573 3,072,107
$ 3870146 $ 3,973,915

LIABILITIESAND SURPLUS

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . ............ ... ... ... .. ... $ 2401538 ¢ 2,223,340
DEfETEA TEVENUE . . . . oo i ettt ettt e 66,140 48,800
2,467,678 2,272,140
(Deficity Surplus- Gallery . .. ... (142,958) 3,763
SUplus- Gallery SNOP . ..o 166,085 159,293
Surplus- Product Development . . ...t 3,876
Surplus -WesternBranch . . ... 2,750 197,168
Surplus-EndowmentFund . ........ ... ... 2,023,576 2,142,734
Deficit - Phasell Expansion Fund . . ...t (654,875) (783,009)
Surplus (deficit) - AcquisitionFund . . ... 4,014 (18,174)
1,402,468 1,701,775
¢ 3870146 ¢ 3973915

Gallery, Gallery Shop, Product Development and Western Branch
Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001
ASSETS

Current
Cashand cash eqQUIVAIENES. . . .o oot $ 177,269 $ 346,507
Accountsrecaivable. . . ... ... 98,169 138,042
Duefrom AcquisitionFund . . .......... ... 10,000 5,000
DuefromEndowment Fund. ...t 18,900 19,608
Duefrom Phasell ExpansionFund. ........... ... ... 26,800 7,500
11721 (Y2 194,767 147,240
¢ 525905 ¢ 663,897

LIABILITIESAND SURPLUS

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .............. ... ... ¢ 430012 % 254,873
DEfETed raVENUE . . . oot 66,140 48,800
496,152 303,673
(Deficit) SUrplus- Gallery . . ..o (142,958) 3,763
SUPIUS- GallEry SNOP . ..ot 166,085 159,293
Surplus- Product Development . . ...t e 3,876
Surplus -WesternBranch . . ... .. 2,750 197,168
29,753 360,224
¢ 525905 ¢ 663,897

See accompanying notes
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ART GALLERY OF NOVA SCOTIA

Gallery
Statement of Revenue, Expenditur es and Deficit
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000
Revenue
Provinceof NovaScotia(Note3) ... ..o vt 1,003,050 1,180,000
SPONSOISNIPS . . . ottt 330,760 168,646
ContributionfromEndowmentFund .. ............. ... ... .. ... ... ... 215,000 225,000
Other income (NOLE2). . . ..o ot 175,813 88,516
Special grants (NOtE3) . .. oottt e 171,900 176,900
ADMISS 0N . .t 47,420 38,924
MEMDErSNIPS . . oottt e 42,753 39,264
Donations- AGNS apped, major gifts. . .......cooviiiiii .. 42372 35,288
Public EQUCALioN Programs. . . . ..o ottt e e 40,243 46,323
SPECIA BVENES. . . ettt 27,740 34,195
Corporate CampPaIgN. . . ..ottt et e 20,340 15,841
ContributionfromGallery Shop. . .. ... oo 10,000 7,000
151 £ P 8,715 10,108
Phasell expansionfees. . ... 7,500
2,136,106 2,073,505
Expenditures (Schedule)
Sdariesand benefits. . ... .. 793,110 783,006
BUIldiNg OpErationS. . . ..o oottt e 602,121 578,787
Exhibitionsand Programming .. ...t e 600,497 435,251
AdMINISIratioN . .. ..o 153,230 147,622
Development/publicrelations. . .......... .. 101,724 105,007
Printingand publication . . ...ttt 15,219 11,619
TeChNOlOgY. . . .ottt 10,081 4,335
MISCEIBNEOUS. . . ..ot 6,845 7,275
2,282,827 2,072,902
Excess of expendituresover revenuefortheyear....................... (146,721) 603
Surplus, beginning of Year .. ...t 3,763 3,160
(Deficit) surplus,end of year. .. ...t (142,958) 3,763
See accompanying notes
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ART GALLERY OF NOVA SCOTIA

Gallery
Schedule of Expenditures
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

Salaries and Benefits
Sdariesand employeebenefits. . ...

Building Operations

Utilities. . . ..
Security . ...

Climate CoNtrol . . ..ottt e e e e e e
Building maintenanceandcleaning . .............coo i

Insurance. . .

Elevator maintenanCe. . . ... ot
BUIAING rEAITS. . o oo

Exhibitionsand

Programs. ..

Programming

WOrkshop sSUPPHIES . . ..o

Vehicle. ...

Collectionsmanagement and gallery services. . .........coovvvieen..
Conservationlad . . ...

Administration

Stationery and pPoOStage. . . . ..o v

Equipmentrental. .. ...t
Memberships. . ...
Equipment maintenanCe. . . . ....coooii et
Delivery administration . . .. ..ooov et

Development/public relations
Development/publicrelations. . .......cco v

Printing and Publication
Printingand publication. ...t

Photography

Technology

Technology .

Training and

Miscellaneous

development . . ...

Bank Charges. . ...
MISCEIANEOUS . . . ..ot e

Total EXPeNditUres. . ..ottt

See accompanying notes

2001 2000

$ 793110 ¢ 783,006
793,110 783,006
209,061 205,751
174,376 170,165
133,188 124,941
46,275 43,668
26,237 23,384
9,063 10,031
3,921 846
602,121 578,787
576,092 398,807
8,625 14,705
1,722 5,515
6,454 14,855
1604 1,369
600,497 435,251
57,188 51,935
28,312 26,178
26,946 25534
16,302 19,105
13,890 14,458
5,535 5,208
4134 2,866
923 2,338
153230 147,622
101,724 105,007
101,724 105,007
13,200 11,291
2,018 328
15,219 11,619
7,861 2,771
2,220 1,564
10,081 4,335
4,031 3434
2,814 3,841
6,845 1,275

§ 22828271 ¢ 2,072,902

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

32



ART GALLERY OF NOVA SCOTIA

Gallery Shop
Statement of Revenue, Expendituresand Surplus
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000
Revenue
Artand Craft SAIES. ..o $ 237,144 % 203,508
Artand craft saleson consignMment . .. ..ot 115,991 122,272
BOOKS, NOtES aNd POStENS . . ..ottt e e 38,983 57,240
392,118 383,021
GOt Of SAlES . . oot 2255901 207,421
(€017 o o 166,527 175,600
Expenditures
Sdlariesand employeebenefits. . . ... 96,165 76,769
Officeand administration. . . ...t e 51,629 43,721
Promotional . ......... .. 1,941 15,715
149,735 136,205
Excess of gross profit over expenditures
for theyear ... ..o 16,792 39,395
Surplus, beginning Of Year. . . ...t 159,293 149,548
Contributionto Gallery .. ... (10,000) (7,000)
Contributionto AcquisitionFund . . .......... ... ... . L (22,650)
SUrplus, end Of YEar . ..o $ 166,085 ¢ 159,293
Product Development
Statement of Revenue, Expendituresand Surplus
for theyear ended March 31, 2001
REVENUE. . ..ottt e e e e e $ 43494 ¢
COoSt Of SAES. . oot 18,206
GroSSPrOfit. . vttt 25,288
Expenditures
Sdlariesand employeebenefits. . . ... 14,880
Officeand administration . .. ...ttt e 3,240
Promotional . ........ .. 2,685
Members disCoUNt. . .. ...t 607
21,412
Excess of gross profit over expenditures
for theyear ... ..o 3,876
Surplus, beginnNing Of Year. . ...t e
SUrPIUS, €N Of VBN . ettt e e $ 3876 $

See accompanying notes
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Western Branch
Statement of Revenue, Expendituresand Surplus
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000

Revenue
Special grants (NOtE3) . ..o oo $ 220,000 723,334
DO ONS . . v ettt ettt 94,082 47,055
Fundraising. . .. coo o 13,206
13 (= (- A 8,548 15,463
335,336 785,852

Expenditures
Buildingcapital COSt. . ...t 474,935 419,874
Officeandmiscellaneous. . ...t 28,730 10,693
Building fundraiSing. . . .. ...ooi i 21,085 20,337
BUIldiNg OpErationS . . . ..ottt e 5,504 4,713
530,254 455,617
Excess of expendituresrevenuefor theyear ...............ciin... (194,418) 330,235
Surplus (deficit), beginningof year. . ... 197,168 (133,067)
SUrplUS, €N Of VBN . ... e $ 2,750 197,168
Endowment Fund
Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001
ASSETS (note 4)

2001 2000

Current
Cashandcashequivalents. . .. ... oot e e $ 9,663 262,117
Accountsrecaivable. . ... .. 812 1,129
DuefromAcquisitionFund . ............ i 23132 18,892
33,613 282,138
Investments (market value - $3,007,982; 2000 - $2,817,977) (noteb). ... .. ... 2,527,573 2,372,106
$ 2,561,186 2,654,244

LIABILITIESAND SURPLUS

Current
Accounts payable. . . ... $ 5,218 8,586
DUBTO GallErY . . oo oot 18,900 19,608
24,118 28,194
DUBtO PNaSE Il .. o 513,492 483316

Surplus
RESIICIEA . .. e 300,000 300,000
UNreStricted ... 1,723 576 1,842,734
2,023 576 2,142,734
¢ 2,561,186 2,654,244

See accompanying notes
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ART GALLERY OF NOVA SCOTIA

Endowment Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expendituresand Surplus
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000
Revenue (Note 4)
INVESIMENT INCOME. . . .\t vttt e ettt et e e e e $ 154985 $ 170,599
LifemembershipS. . ...t 26,500 22,000
MariandeWittEndowment . . ... ... .. 1,000 18,294
(@Y7 < g o (0] = R 7,500 5,000
Restricted donations . . . ..o ottt 150 10,507
Gallery endoWmENES. . ..o oo 4117
190,135 230,517
Expenditures (note 4)

....................................................... 24,762 21,183
AdMINIST Al ON . ..o 16,049 13,116
Promotionand publicrelations. . ... 14,880 6,646
Donor restricted ProjeCtS. . . ..ot ettt 7,921 2,329
Printingand postage. . .. ..o oo 7,440 3,500
LifemembershipServicing. . .. ...t 5,615 5,356
Gallery Endowment BXPenSsES. . . ..o v vt ettt 2,265 13,122

........................................................ 300 822
MISCEIANEOUS. . . . ..o 61 4581

79,293 70,655

Excess of revenue over expendituresfortheyear....................... 110,842 159,862
Surplus, beginningof year . .......... ... 2,142,734 2,215,872
2,253,576 2375734

Contributionto Gallery. . ... (215,000) (225,000)
Contributionto Acquisition Fund. . .. ...t (15,000) (8,000)
Surplus,endofyear ... ... . 2,023,576 2,142,734
Less restricted SUrplUS . . ..o oo (300,000) (300,000)
Unrestricted surplus,endofyear ..., $ 1723576 $ 1,842,734

See accompanying notes
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ART GALLERY OF NOVA SCOTIA

Phase |l Expansion Fund
Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001

2001 2000
ASSETS

Current
(@2 1 $ 819046 ¢
Investments (market value - $nil; 2000 - $700,000) (note5)................ 700,000
819,046 700,000
DuefromEndowment Fund . ............ .. 513,492 483,316
¢ 1332538 ¢ 1,183,316

LIABILITIESAND DEFICIT

Current
AcCoUNtS PAYaDIE . . .ottt $ 1,960,613 $ 1,958,825
DuetoGallery. . ... 26,800 7,500
1,987,413 1,966,325
o (654,875) (783,009)
¢ 1332538 ¢ 1,183,316

Phase |l Expansion Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Deficit
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

Revenue
Pledgesand donations. . ...ttt e $ 176,390 ¢ 286,920
INVESIMENE INCOME . . . oottt e e e e i 71,910 59,508
248,300 346,428

Expenditures

Capital EXPENSES . . .ottt 103,391 113,700
FUNdraiSiNg BXPENSES . . o oottt e 10,189 9,844
TIUSE O BB . . o oottt 6,326 6,683
Furnitureand fiXtUreS . . . ... oo e 260 18,856
MISCEIBNEOUS. . . ..ottt e e 567
120,166 149,656
Excess of revenue over expendituresfor theyear ....................... 128,134 196,772
Deficit, beginning of YEar . .. ..o vttt (783,009) (979,781)
Deficit,end of Year .. ... $ (654,875) $ (783,000)

See accompanying notes
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ART GALLERY OF NOVA SCOTIA

Acquisition Fund
Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001

2001 2000
ASSETS
Current
Cash. .. $ 2276 $ 5,900
Accountsrecaivable. ... ... . 566 874
¢ 2842 % 6,774
LIABILITIESAND SURPLUS
Current
ACCOUNES PAYADIE . . . . $ 5696 $ 1,056
DuetoEndowment Fund . . ... ... 23,132 18,892
DUBTO GallEry . . oo 10,000 5,000
38,828 24,948
Surplus (defiCit). . ..o 4,014 (18,174)
¢ 2842 % 6,774
Statement of Revenue, Expendituresand Surplus
for theyear ended March 31, 2001
Revenue
Donations:
Art Salesand Rental SOCIEY . . ... e et $ 45000 ¢ 35,560
Ot NEr . o 21,790 32,625
Friendsof theGalery ... e 6,000 7,083
GrantS (NOtE ) . . .ottt e e 22,870 65,855
ContributionfromEndowmentFund . . ........... ..o i 15,000 8,000
AGNS ADPDEA . .o 14,522 15,988
101 = (- A 159 446
ContributionfromGallery Shop . ... 22,650
125,341 188,207
Expenditures
ACUISITIONS . . . oo 56,795 167,587
Appraisal and professional fees. . ... 30,808 15,249
INSU NG . . ottt et e 10,000 5,000
PromMOtiON . ..o o 2,008 4,228
AdMINISration . ... .. 2,000 10,543
RS 1107 827 1,413
MISCEIBNEOUS. . . ..ottt e e 649 11,779
Bank Charges. . ... 65 112
Permanent collectionexhibit. ......... ... ... .. 1,663
Maud LeWiSHOUSE. . . ..ot e e e 125
103,153 217,699
Excess of revenue over expendituresfortheyear ....................... 22,188 (29,492)
(Deficit) surplus, beginningofyear . . .......ooiiiii i (18,174) 11,318
Surplus(deficit),endofyear . ..o ¢ 4014 ¢ (18,174)
See accompanying notes
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ART GALLERY OF NOVA SCOTIA

Notesto Financial Statements
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

Purpose of the Organization

The Art Gallery of Nova Scotia's ("AGNS") mandate is to preserve the provinces's unique visual
and cultural history through the acquisition, conversation and display of art, and the provision
of art education to learners of all ages.

The Art Galery of Nova Scotia is registered as a charitable organization under the Income Tax

Act and, s such, is exempt from income taxes and is able to issue donation receipts for income
tax purposes. In order to maintain its status as a registered charity under the Act, the AGNS must
meet certian requirements within the Act. In the opinion of management, these reguirements
have been met.

Significant Accounting Policies

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles within reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework
of the accounting policies summarized bel ow:

Fund accounting

In order to ensure observance of the limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available
to the AGNS, the accounts of the AGNS are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting. Accordingly, resources are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into separate
funds. These funds are held in accordance with the objectives specified by the donors or in accordance
with directivesissued by the Board of Directors or various funding authorities.

For financial reporting purposes, the accounts have been classified into the following seven groupings.

The AGNS Gallery Fund supports the day to day operations of the Gallery including all programming,
exhibitions, development, public relations, conservation, and collections management.

The purpose of the AGNS Acquisition Fund is to purchase works of art for the Gallery and cover
costs associated with acquiring these works.

The AGNS Endowment Fund exists to support and manage all of the investments for the long term
survival of the Gallery. The investments are managed by a professional fund manager and the
Investment Committee is responsible for monitoring the fund on behalf of the Board of Governors.

The AGNS Phase || Fund was established in 1998 when the Gallery began expansion into the Provincial
Building. Thisfund will cease to exist when all pledges towards the project have been received.

The AGNS Western Branch Fund is primarily a capital fund with the purpose of completing the construction
of the Western Branch in Y armouth. The expected date of completion is 2002.

The AGNS Gallery Shop serves dual purposes, firstly it is an excellent showcase for AGNS branded
products devel oped around major traveling exhibitions. Secondly, to extend the educational experience

of our visitors exposing them to the best that Nova Scotia has to offer in fine craft and art. The sale of
products also provides financial support to artists and craftspeople. Funds generated support acquisitions
of art work for the Gallery and other special need projects.

AGNS Product Development is a new initiative this year for the Gallery to develop and market AGNS
branded projects under various copyrights and provide an opportunity for AGNS to licenseitsintellectual
property. Potential revenues from thisfund will be directed to special projects as determined by the Gallery.
Cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents are cash and short term liquid investments with a maturity of 90 days or less.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 38



Inventory

Inventory isvalued at the lower of cost, determined on an average cost basis, and net realizable value.

Investments

Investments are recorded at cost. Income isrecognized on the settlement date.

Revenuerecognition

Revenue from donations is recognized when received. All other revenue, with the exception of

investment income, is recognized on the accrual basis of accounting.

Acquisitions

Acquisitions of works of art, including donated works, become the property of the province of
Nova Scotia Accordingly, acquisitions paid for by the Art Gallery of Nova Scotia are expensed
in the year acquired. Acquisitions expensed in the current year amounted to $56,795 (2000 - $167,587).

Other income

Other income includes revenue from rental spaces, catal ogue sales, advertising and gallery services.

Contributed service

Volunteers contribute approximately 10,000 hours per year to assist the Art Gallery of Nova Scotiain
carrying out its mandate. Because of the difficulty in determining the fair value, contributed services

are not recognized in the financial statements.

Gover nment Assistance

During the year the Art Galery of Nova Scotia recognized revenue from provincial, federal

and other grants which are recorded as follows:;

2001 2000
Gallery Fund:
Nova Scotia Department of Tourismand Culture............... 1003050 ¢ 1,180,000
CanadaCouncil forthe Arts. . ... . . 165,900 165,900
Halifax Regiona Municipality ..............ccoviiiiiinna.. 6,000 6,000
Federal Department of CanadianHeritage . .................... 5,000
1,174,950 1,356,900
Western Branch Fund:
Nova Scotia Department of Tourismand Culture............... 80,000
Townof Yamouth. . ... 50,000
Municipa Digtrictof Yarmouth. . ............................ 10,000
Department of Economic Development and Tourism............ 80,000 720,000
District of Argyle. . ... 3,334
220,000 723334
Acquisition Fund:
CanadaCouncil forthe Arts. . ... ... 22,870 29,382
Federal Department of Canadian Heritage . .. .................. 36,473
22,870 65,855
1417820 $ 2,146,089
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Endowment Fund

Endowment Fund donations and bequests are allocated to the Endowment Fund
together with investment income thereon. The income of the fund, or a portion
thereof as determined by the Board of Governors, after a baance of $500,000
has been accumulated shall be available for the purpose of:

a) the acquisition of artworks for the permanent collection;

b) the expansion of exhibition and art education programs; and

c) other special projects.

The funds which will be placed in the Endowment Fund will be:

a) donations designated as such by the donor;

b) special types of donationswhich are stipulated to go to the Fund, such as Life Member's fees; and
c) any funds specifically designated by the Board of Governors.

Expenses relating to the activities of the Endowment Fund will be charged to the Endowment Fund.
Investments

The investments included in the Art Gallery of Nova Scotia's financial statements are comprised
of the following:

2001 2002
Market Market
Cost Value Cost Value
Endowment Fund
Moneymarket . .................. $ -3 - ¢ 37661 $ 37,661
BQUity. ..ooov i 2,527,573 3,007,982 2,334,446 2,780,316
2527573 3,007,982 2,372,107 2,817,977

Phase |l Expansion Fund
GIC. . e 700,000 700,000

$ 2527573 ¥ 3,007,982 ¢ 3072107 $ 3517977
Compar ative Amounts

Certain of the comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the
presentation adopted in the current year.
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AUDITORS REPORT

To The Directors of
Bedford Waterfront Development Corporation Limitec

We have audited the balance sheet of Bedford Waterfront Development Corporation Limited as
a March 31, 2001 and the statements of earnings and retained earnings and cash
flows for the vyear then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial  statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used anc

sionificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal financia
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financia statements present fairly, in al material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as at March 31, 2001 and the results of
operations and cash flows of the Corporation for the vear ended, in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

WHITE BURGESS LANGILLE INMAN
Chartered Accountants

Bedford, Nova Scotia
Mav 30 2001
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BEDFORD WATERFRONT DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
(Formerly Bedford Waterfront Development Cor poration)

Balance Sheet
asat March 31, 2001

2001 2000
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Casn . $ 131,594 $ 1,303

Accountsreceivable. . ... .. .. 629,326 742,187

Prepaid eXpensesS . . .. .o 366 2,837

Mortgagesreceivable (note4) . ........... .. i 1,400,000 1,985,000

2,161,286 2,731,327
REAL ESTATE AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT -

PHASE 1 (note5). ... ..o e e --- ---
REAL ESTATE AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT -

PHASE 2 (NOtE6). . .. ..ot e e 680,840 948,200
JETTY BREAKWATER PROJECT (note7) .. .........covuv... 471,021 394,377
CAPITAL ASSETS(NOtE8) . ..o e e e 6,667 8,350

$ 3319814 $ 4,082,254
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . .................... $ 40,962 $ 396,684

LONG-TERM DEBT (NOt€9Q) . .. .. oot e e 3,155,363 3,562,081
3,196,325 3,958,765
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
RETAINED EARNINGS. . . .. ... i 123,489 123,489
123,489 123,489
$ 3,319.814 $ 4,082,254
CONTINGENCY (note 10)
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (note 11)
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BEDFORD WATERFRONT DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

(Formerly Bedford Waterfront Development Cor poration)

Statement of Earnings and Retained Earnings

for theyear ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000

REVENUE
Grants- Provinceof NovaScotia. . .......................... $ 140,200 $ 165,000
Other iNCOME. . . . ... e e e e e e 63,341 965
203,541 165,965

EXPENSES
Chairman'sfees. .. ... --- 13,400
Professional fees. . . ... 13,946
Directors fees. . ... 4,600 11,026
INSUFANCE. . . o ottt e 3,720 4,873
Interest and bank charges. . ............ ... ... .. . .. 54 204
OffiCE BXPENSES . . . ottt e 9,542 10,171
Depreciation and amortization. . ............. ... ... 1,683 2,109
33,545 41,783
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES . .............. 169,996 124,182

TRANSFER TO REAL ESTATE AND DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTS. . . i (169,996) (124,182)
NET EARNINGSFORTHEYEAR. . ... ...
RETAINED EARNINGS - beginningofvear .................... 123,489 123,489
RETAINED EARNINGS-endofvear . ..............ovvunen.. $ 123,489 $ 123,489
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BEDFORD WATERFRONT DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

(Formerly Bedford Waterfront Development Cor poration)

Statement of Cash Flows
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash provided from (used in) operations
Net earningsforthevear . ........... ... ... ... ... ... ..... $
Items in earnings not involving cash
Excess of revenue over expenditures. .. ................... 169,996 124,182
Depreciation and amortization . . ........................ 1,683 2,109
171,679 126,291
Change in noncash working capital balances
Accountsreceivable. .. ... . 112,861 (649,752)
Prepaid eXDENSES . . . .. oot 2,471 (158)
Mortgagesreceivable. .. ... 585,000 (1,685,000)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .. .................. (355,722) 209,289
516,289 (1,999,330)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lona-termdebt . .. ......... ... ... ... ... .. ..., (406,718)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of real estate and construction projects - Phasel. ..... (32,032)
Acquisition of real estate and construction projects - Phase2, net
of related revenues of $292,175 (2000 - 451,098) ... .......... 97,364 (594,226)
Acquisition of jetty breakwater project. . .. ............. ... ... (76,644) (52,137)
Net proceedsondisposal of land . . .......................... 2,472,083
20,720 1,793,688
CHANGE IN CASHDURING THEYEAR. . ........ .. i 130,291 (205,642)
CASH -bedginningofvear................ ..., 1,303 206,945
CASH-endofvear .. ........... it $ 131,594 1,303
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BEDFORD WATERFRONT DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
(Formerly Bedford Waterfront Development Cor poration)

Notesto Financial Statements
for theyear ended March 31, 2001

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which
contemplates the realization of assets and the payment of liabilities in the ordinary course
of business.

GENERAL

Waterfront Development Project
The Corporation was created by a statue of the Legislature of Nova Scotia.

The principal objective of the Corporation is the development of the Bedford
waterfront. During the vear the Corporation continued development of the project.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Capital Assets
Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided by the diminishing balance method
at the followina annual rates:

Office equipment 20%
Computer hardware 30%
Computer software 100%
Information booth 20%
Silt curtain 20%

Capitalization

All  expenditures directly related to acquisition, renovation, development and administration
are included in the cost of real estate and development projects or the cost of the jetty
breakwater project.

Real estate and development projects are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. The jetty breakwater proiect is recorded at cost.

Income taxes
The Corporation is exempt from income taxes under subsection 149(1) of The Income Tax Act.

MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE

2001 2000

Mortgage receivable-site3.8. .. ........ ... ... . . ... $ - $ 300,000
Mortgage receivable - site 4.4 A1-YB1. .................. 215,000
Mortgage receivable - site 4.5 . . . ... .. . 1,400,000 1,470,000
$ 1,400,000 $ 1,985,000

The amended vendor take-back mortgage on the sae of Site 4.5 accrues interest
at 12 % per annum up to December 1, 2000, and at 8.5% per annum thereafter. The first pavment of
$70,000 was received in May 2000. The second pavment of $725,000 is to be received on the earlier of
June 30, 2001 or the date of the first draw received by the purchaser on its builders' first mortaage. The
final payment of $675,000 is due on September 15, 2001.
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5.  REAL ESTATE AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT - PHASE 1

2001 2000
Real estate and development projects, atcost............... $ 23,040,665 $ 23,132,813
Property taxes. . .. ... 4,589
Professional fees............. .. ... . . L. 11,685
Advertising. . . ... --- 1,475
Rockfill .. ... 14,285
32,034
TRANSFER OF EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURES. ...... ... .. i (124,182)
23,040,665 23,040,665
Less. Capital grants
Federal........................ 5,000,000
Provincial ..................... 4,631,203
Municipal . .................... 999,250 10,630,453 10,630,453
12,410,212 12,410,212
Less: Asset conveyance to the Town of Bedford. . .......... 6,783,307 6,783,307
LandSales. . ... 4,108,035 4,108,035
Non-refundable depositsonland sales. . . ............ 71,692 71,692
Writedowntorealizablevalue. ... ................. 1,093,204 1,093,204
Transfer of coststo Real Estate and Development
Project-Phase2........... ... ... ... ... ... 353,974 353,974
12,410,212 12,410,212
$ - $
Interest in the cumulative amount of $3,057,704 (2000 - $3,057,704) and dredging

costs of $1.7 million are included in the total cost of real estate and development projects.

During a prior period,

Town of Bedford:

(a) parkland and open spaces including improvements thereto;

(b) boardwalks including improvements thereto;

(c) all streets and roads completed to Town standards;

(d) sidewalks and curbs completed to Town standards;

(e) sanitary and storm sewers and water devices built to Town standards; anc
(f) certain municipal or civic parking areas to be controlled by the Town.

The cost alocated to these assets conveyed amounted

the Corporation conveyed the following assets at

its cost to the

to $6,783,307 and was determined

on the basis of the specific contract cost of the bridae. approach road, services and walkways

conveved, landscaping costs specifically for the

acre of the remaining land developed for Phase 1 times the number of acres conveyed.

land conveved plus the average cost per
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REAL ESTATE AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT - PHASE 2

2001 2000
Transfer of costs from Real Estate and Development Project -

Phase 1. . ... . $ 353,974 $ 353,974
Add: Construction and enaineering. . .. .................. 1,240,135 1,045,324
Less: Other revenues related to the completion of Phase 2. . . . (743,273) (451,098)
Less. Transfer of excess of revenues over expenditures. . . . . . (169,996)
Real Estate and Development projects - Phase 2, at cost. . . . . .. $ 680,840 $ 948,200
JETTY BREAKWATER PROJECT
The Corporation is completing the south side of their lands by building a jetty breakwater,
running southerly off Site 3.2. This jetty breakwater will provide pedestrian and public
marine access to the Bedford Basin as well as weather protection for alarge public marina.

The project is funded jointly by the Federal, Provincial and Municipal levels of governments
as well as a contribution from the Corporation directly for atotal cost of $2,266,433.
The projiect started in February 1997 and work on the north jetty breakwater has been
substantially completed.

2001 2000
Project, at cost

Constructionand engineering. . .. ............c.cuuun.... $ 2,150,204 $ 2,094,948

Surveying and managementfees. . ...................... 38,768 38,768

Marketing. . . ... 15,660 15,660

Ledal . ... 61,801 40,413

2,266,433 2,189,789
Less: Capital Grants

Provincial . ... ... .. . (450,000) (450,000)

Federal. . ... .. (400,000) (400,000)

Municipal .. ... (390,640) (390,640)

(1,240,640) (1,240,640)
Less:
Other revenues related to completion of the jetty project. . . . . (554,772) (554,772)
$ 471021 $ 394,377
CAPITAL ASSETS
2001 2000
Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Net Net
Office equipment. . . . . .. $ 37,097 $ 34,499 $ 2,598 $ 3,248
Computer hardware. . . .. 6,469 6,383 86 123
Computer software. . . . . 1,158 1,158
Information booth. . . . .. 8,588 8,023 565 706
Siltcurtain. . .......... 9,272 5,854 3,418 4,273
$ 62,584 $ 55,917 $ 6,667 $ 8,350
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11.

LONG-TERM DEBT

2001 2000
Department of Economic Development Loan
Balance - beginningof thevear . ......................... $ 3,662,081 $ 3,662,081
Additional advances madedurinathevear . .................
Repayment fromlandsales. . ............. ... ... .. ..... 406,718
Balance-endofvear........... ... .. .. i, $ 3,155,363 $ 3,562,081

The above loan is to be repaid using excess funds from sales of the rea estate developments,
therefore no known current portion of long-term debt exists.

CONTINGENCY

A mechanic's lien action has been registered by Waterworks Construction Inc. claiming
$918,077, being the cost to raise a cement caisson which sunk during construction of the
north jetty referenced in note 7. It is the opinion of legal counsel that the claim will be
defeated.

Nousha Investments Limited has commenced action against the Corporation claiming ¢
proprietary interest in Site 4.5 (Phase 1) as a result of a letter of intent entered into with the
Corporation during the vear. It is the opinion of legal counsel that the claim will be
defeated. This site has subseguently been sold to another purchaser, under which the
agreement of purchase and sale required the Corporation to enter into an indemnity aareement
to protect the purchaser against possible legal expenses and claims arising from this action.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Effective April 1, 2001, the Articles of Incorporation were amended to approve amalgamation with
Waterfront Development Corporation.
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AUDITORS REPORT

To the Chairperson and Members of the Board of
Cape Breton District Health Authority

We have audited the statement of financia position of the Cape Breton District Health Authority
as a March 31, 2001 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash
flows for the three months then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Hospital's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financia
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of materid  misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test bass, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as wel as evauating the ovedl financia
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financial position of the Authority as a March 31, 2001 and the results of its
operations and the changes in its cash flows for the three months then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMGLLP
Chartered Accountants

Sydney, Canada
September 10, 2001
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CAPE BRETON DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS
March 31, January 1,
2001 2001
Current Assets:
(7= 1 $ 5479,900 $ 6,373,632
Internally restrictedcash .. ............. ... ... 160,945 160,945
Accountsreceivable(note2) ... 18,603,267 15,175,535
Inventories (NOtE4) . .. ..ot e 2,339,853 2,549,859
Prepaid BXPENSES . . . ottt 502,352 350,201
27,086,317 24,610,172
Capital assets (note 5)
0 246,682,272 243,673,060
Lessaccumulated amortization .. ... 80,970,913 78,712,523
165,711,359 164,960,537
Other assets (note 7)
Due from Department of Health for retirement allowance. .. ........ 10,176,924 9,880,021

$ 202,974,600 $ 199,450,730

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Accounts payables and accrued liabilities(note6). . ............. $ 28,067,819 $ 23,717,609
Deferred contributions for capital assets(note8). . ................. 164,048,366 165,121,925
Other liabilities:

Retirement allowance payable (note7) . ....................... 10,176,924 9,880,021
Net assets :

Unrestricted (deficiency). . ..o o i (1,142,447)

Restricted (NOt€ 1 (C)) .. oo v et 160,945 160,945

Invested in capital assets(note9) ... 1,662,993 570,230

681,491 731,175

$ 202,974,600 $ 199,450,730

Contingency (note 12)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CAPE BRETON DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Operations
Three months ended March 31, 2001

Income:
Net patient income:
Provincial plan. ..........cco i $ 35,942,704
Other. . 2,744,020
Medical SErviCe INSUraNCe . . .. oo oo 1,933,246
Netdifferential. ... 372,918
Dietary rECOVENES . . . o ittt e e ettt e e 294,762
MisCcellaneous. . . ... .o 142,721
INVESEMENt INCOME . . . . oottt e e e e e 70,370
Referredinwork . ... ..o 11,360
EQUIPMENE grant. . ... oottt e 9627 $ 41,521,728
Expenses:
NUrsing inpatient SErVICES . . ..ot 14,600,792
SUPPOI SEIVICES . . o v vttt et e 11,710,706
Diagnostic and therapeutic Services. . . .......co v e, 7,373,979
AmbUlatory Car€ SEIVICES. . .. ot vt e ettt e 6,108,140
Addiction SEIVICES. . ..ot 868,791
Publichealth. ........ ... i i 714,828
BAUCALiON. . ..ot e 144,492 41,521,728
Excess of revenue over expenditures before below noteditems. .. ........................
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets. . .. .. .. 2,208,706
Amortization of capital @SSets. . .. ... (2,258,390)
Retirementallowance. .. ...t e 296,903
Department of Health funding for retirement allowance. ............. (296,903) (49,684)
Excess of expendituUre OVEr FEVENUE. . . . . .. oottt e ettt ettt $ (49,684)
Statement of Changesin Net Assets
Three months ended March 31, 2001
Investment in
Unrestricted Restricted capital assets Total
Balance, beginning of period. . . . . .. $ - $ -3 - $
Acquired from predecessor
entities. . ................... 160,945 570,230 731,175
Excess of expenditure
OVErrevenue. ............... (49,684) (49,684)
Net changein investment in
capital assets (note9) ......... (1,142,447) 1,142,447
Balance, end of period. . .......... $ (1,142447)% 160,945 $ 1,662,993 $ 681,491

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CAPE BRETON DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Cash Flows
Three months ended March 31, 2001

Cash provided by (used in):

Operation activities:

Excess of expenditureoverrevenue. . ..., $

Items not involving cash:
Amortizationof capital assets. . .. ...
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets. . .
Retirementalowance. .. ............ i
Department of Health funding for retirement allowance. . .......

Change in non-cash operating working capital:
Increasein accountsreceivable. .. ........... ...
Decreasein inventories. .. ...
Increase in prepaid EXPENSES. . .. oot i e
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities............

Financing and investing activities:
Purchasesof capital @ssets. .. .. ...
Contributionfor capital assets. . . ...t

DECIEASE N CASN. . vttt ettt e
Cash, beginning of Period. . . ...

Cash,end of period. . ...t

Cash is represented by the following:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

(49,684)

2,258,390
(2,208,706)
(296,903)
296,903

(3,427,732)
210,006
(152,151)
4,350,210

(3,009,212)
1,135,147

$

980,333

(1,874,065)

(893,732)

6,534,577

5,640,845

160,945
5,479,900

5,640,845

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

52



CAPE BRETON DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Notesto Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2001

On June 8, 2000, Bill #34 - The Heath Authorities Act, received Royal Asset. This legidation
abolished Regional Hedth Boards and replaced them with Heath Authorities. The effects on the
former Cape Breton Hedthcare Complex are as follows. Cape Breton Regional Hospital, Glace
Bay Hedthcare Corporation, New Waterford Consolidated Hospital, Northside Harbour View
Hospital, Inverness Consolidated Memoria Hospita, Sacred Heart Healthcare Centre, Victoria
County Memoria Hospital and Buchanan Memoria Heathcare Centre form District Health
Authority #8. As a result of this legislation, the Cape Breton Healthcare Complex ceased operations
effective December 31, 2000 and was replaced by District Health Authority #8 on January 1, 2001.

District Health Authority #8 changed its name to operate as Cape Breton District
Health Authority.

The Hedth Authority's principal activity is to operate and manage designated hospitals and
provide other health related activities to the residents of Cape Breton.

Significant accounting policies:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:

(a8) Revenue Recognition
The Health Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include
donations and government grants.

The Health Authority is funded primarily by the Province of Nova Scotia in accordance with
budget arrangements established by the Depatment of Hedth. Operating grants are
recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. Grants approved but not
received a the end of an accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant
relates to afuture period, it is deferred and recognized in that subsequent period.

Unrestricted  contributions are  recognized as revenue when received or receivable
if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably
assured.

Externally restricted contributions, other than endowment contributions, are
recognized as revenue in the vyear in which the related expenses are
recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capita assets are deferred
and amortized into revenue on a sraight-line basis, a a rate corresponding with
the amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the
related expenses ae recognized. Unrestricted  investment  income is  recognized
as revenue when earned.

(b) Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost.

(c) Restricted

Funds donated from outside agencies or individuals which have been designated for a
specific purpose have been restricted.
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(d) Capital assets:
Capital assets are stated at cost.

Capital assets are amortized on the straight-line basis using the following annual rates:

Asset Rates
Land improvements 5%
Buildings and service equipment 2% - 5%
Major equipment 5% - 20%
Equipment under capital lease 10% - 20%

Accountsreceivable:

March 31, January 1,
2001 2001
Patients (less allowance for doubtful accounts) ................ $ 771,373 $ 818,068
Medical SErviceinsSUranCe . . ... oot e 493,500 304,061
Department of Community Services. ......oooveiiiii ... 44,310 84,000
Level 11 Care (less allowance for doubtful accounts) . .......... 526,859 446,131
Harmonized salestax. . ... 1,067,218 714,386
Hospital Foundations (note11). ...........c.coviireeen... 1,073,858 1,538,592
VB O ANS . . ottt 259,153 260,664
SUNANY. oo e 1,652,950 1,023,621
Guysborough Antigonish Strait Health Authority . ............. 338,845
Department of Health (note 3):
Estimated year end adjustment. . ......................... 4,234,172 115,585
Capital Funding .. ... 2,658,698 3,347,788
Vacationaccrual . .......o i 5,608,548 6,124,947
Addiction Servicesand PublicHedlth...................... 212,628 58,847

$ 18,603,267 $ 15,175,535

Accountswith the Department of Health:

The Health Authority has the following accounts with the Department of Health:

March 31, January 1,
2001 2001
Accounts receivable:

Retirement dllowance(note7) . ... $ 10,176,924 9,880,021
Estimatedyearend adjustment. .. ............ ... ... oh.. 4,234,172 115,585
Capital funding . ... 2,658,698 3,347,788
Vacationaccrual. . ... 5,608,548 6,124,947
Addiction Servicesand PublicHealth. . .................... 212,628 58,847

$ 22890970 $ 19,527,188

Collectability of the estimated receivable is dependent on obtaining approval for certain expenditures.

The adjustment, if any, on the ultimate settlement of the above amounts will be accounted for as
charge to or credit against income in the period which settlement occurs.

Inventories: March 31, January 1,
2001 2001

Medical andsurgical. . ... $ 490,567 $ 560,355
DIUGS. . i 961,643 1,039,041
FOOd . ..o 53,947 68,406
GenEral . .. 833,696 882,057
$ 2,339,853 $ 2,549,859
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Capital assets:

March 31, January 1,

2001 2001

Land . .. $ 570,230 $ 570,230
Land improvements. . ...t e 2,434,109 2,470,225
Buildingsand serviceequipment. .. .......... .. ... 143,522,420 144,189,686
EQUIPMENt. . .o 19,184,600 17,730,396

$ 165,711,359 $ 164,960,537

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

March 31, January 1,

2001 2001

Accountspayable. . ...... ... ... $ 9238975 $ 7,282,180
Due to Department of Health:

Advances by Provincial Plan-current . .................... 5,549,989 4,722,739
Employee deductionspayable. . ............. ... .. .. ...... 126,618 19,328
Accrued salaries:

SAlAriES. . ot 4,939,568 4,164,165

Vacationpay accrual. .. ...t 6,842,374 6,123,601
Otheraccruals. ... e 167,709 383,400
Payableforequipment . .......... ... 73,820 83,447
Department of Health new hospital construction. .. ............ 938,749 938,749
Guysborough Antigonish Strait Health Authority .............. 190,017

$ 28,067,819 $ 23,717,609

Retirement allowance:

In the prior year, the Department of Health requested that Nova Scotia Health Boards recognize
in their financial statements both the liability for retiring alowances and the related commitment by
the Department of Health to fund same.

To promote consistency amongst Boards, the Department engaged consulting actuaries to quantify
for each Regional Board the retiring allowance liability and expense for years up to March 31,
2000 along with a projection of the expense and liability for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001.

In compliance with the Department's request, the former Cape Breton Healthcare Complex had
recorded a net gain of $8,764,100 in respect of retiring allowance accrued up to December 31, 2000:

Distribution Distribution
to DHA#8 from DHA#7 Total
Balanceasat January 1,2001. ............. $ 8,764,100 $ 1,115921 $ 9,880,021
Retiring allowance expense computed with
reference to the actuarial projection of
expensefor theperiod. ................. 264,000 32,903 296,903
$ 9,028,100 $ 1,148824 $ 10,176,924

Deferred contributionsrelated to capital assets:

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of donations
and grants received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of capital contributions is
recorded as revenue in the statement of operations. The changes in the deferred contributions
balance during the period are as follows:

Transferred from Cape Breton Healthcare Complex. .. .. ...t $ 145,506,715
Transferred from District Health Authority #7. .. .. ... ... 19,615,210
Additional contributionsrecelved . . ........ . 1,135,147
Lessamounts amortizEd tOTEVENUE . . . . ..ot ottt et e e e e e e e (2,208,706)

$__164.048,366
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9. Invested in capital assets:

a) Investment in capital assetsis calculated as follows:

CaAPIaAl BSOS . . . vttt $ 165,711,359
Amounts financed by: Deferred contributions. .. ............... .. .. .. .. ... ... 164,048,366
$ 1,662,993

b) Changein net assetsinvested in capital assetsis calculated as follows:

Excess of expenses over revenue:

Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets. . ............ $ 2,208,706
Amortization of capital 8SSEtS. . .. .. i 2,258,390
$___ (49684
Net change in investment in capital assets:
Purchase of capital aSSetS. .. . ..ottt $ 3,009,212
Amounts funded by : Deferred contributions. . ........... ... . i, 1,866,765
$ 1,142,447

10. Acquisition of assets:

As a result of dissolution, the former Cape Breton Heathcare Complex and the former Eastern
Regional Hedth Board has distributed its net assets (consisting of deferred contributions) to the
Cape Breton District Health Authority (District Health Authority #8) as follows:

Distribution  Distribution from
from Cape Breton  Eastern Regional
Healthcare Complex  Health Board Balance
January 1, 2001  January 1, 2001 January 1, 2001

Assets distributed:

Ca. oo $ 6,149,648 $ 223984 $ 6,373,632
Internally restrictedcash .. .............. 160,945 160,945
Accountsreceivable. ................... 12,816,855 2,019,835 14,836,690
Inventories. . ..., 2,286,542 263,317 2,549,859
Prepaidexpenses. . .........covvinn.. 260,932 89,269 350,201
Capital @SS&tS. ..o vv e 145,575,962 19,384,575 164,960,537
Other receivable - retirement allowance. . . . . 8,764,100 1,115,921 9,880,021
Inter authority accounts. . ............... --- 338,845 338,845
176,014,984 23,435,746 199,450,730

Less liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . . . 21,222,017 $ 2435158 $ 23,657,175
Deferredrevenue. . .................... --- 60,434 60,434
Deferred contributions for capital assets. . . . 145,506,715 19,615,210 165,121,925
Other liability - retirement allowance. . . . . . 8,764,100 1,115,921 9,880,021
175,492,832 23,226,723 198,719,555
Net assetsdistributed. . . ................. $ 522,152 $ 209,023 $ 731,175

Consisting of:

Restricted. . ..........o i $ 160,945 $ - $ 160,945
Invested in capital assets. ............... 361,207 209,023 570,230
$ 522,152 $ 209,023 $ 731,175

11. Related party transactions:

The Hospitd is related to the Cape Breton Regional Hospital Foundation, Northside Hospital Charitable

Foundation, New Waterford Consolidated Charitable Foundation, Glace Bay Hedthcare
Corporation Charitable Foundation, Buchanan Memoria Foundation, Sacred Heart Hospital
Foundation, Victoria County Memorial Hospital Charitable Foundation and Inverness Consolidated
Memorial Hospital Foundation. The Foundations' primary purpose is to raise funds to assist

in the construction of and the supply of certain equipment for the Hospital.
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12.

13.

Asat March 31, 2001 the following amounts were due from the Foundations with comparative figures:

March 31, January 1,

2001 2001

Cape Breton Regional Hospital Foundation.................. $ 408,861 $ 532,114
Northside Hospital Charitable Foundation. . .................. 36,327
Inverness Consolidated Memorial Hospital Foundation. ... ... .. 49,639 46,401
Sacred Heart Hospital Foundation. . ........................ 80,000
Buchanan Memorial Hospital Foundation. . .................. 579,031 880,077
$ 1073858 $ 1,538,592

Contingency:
Funds required to settle labour dispute:

The financial statements contain an accrual for the expected cost of contact settlement with the
Nova Scotia Nurses Union (NSNU) in respect of retroactive amounts owing from November 1, to March 31,
2001. The estimate transferred from the predecessor entity was based on a directive from the
Department of Health to accrue a 1.9% increase. The estimate transferred from DHA#7 was based on
the tentative agreement that had been reached with the NSNU. This agreement was ultimately
rejected. Therefore the actual cost of settlement may differ from that accrued in the financial
statements. Any differences will be recognized in the period of settlement. It is the Department
of Health's position that any costs associated with the settlement will be financed by the Department
and therefore there is no effect on net income.

Comparativefigures:

As this was the first three months of operation for the Health Authority, comparative figures are
not available.
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AUDITORS REPORT

To the Chairperson and Members of the Board of
Cape Breton Healthcare Compl ex

We have audited the statement of financial position of Cape Breton Healthcare Complex
as at March 31, 2001 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year than ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Hospital's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of materia misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evauating the overal financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financia statements present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financial position of the Complex a a March 31, 2001, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the vyear then ended in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMGLLP
Chartered Accountants

Sydney, Canada
September 10, 2001
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CAPE BRETON HEALTHCARE COMPLEX

Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS
March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Current assets:
Cash . $ ) 6,149648 $ 7,732,202
Internally restrictedcash. .. ... oo 160,945 160,945
Accountsreceivable(note?2)............... .. ... ... 12,816,855 14,359,121
Inventories(note4). .. ...t 2,286,542 2,307,551
Prepaidexpenses. ... 260,932 466,510
21,674,922 25,026,329
Capital assets (note 5):
0L 211,922,589 210,423,832
Lessaccumulated amortization. . ............. ... ... 66,346,627 60,438,741
145,575,962 149,985,091
Other assets (note 8):
Due from Department of Health for retirement alowance. . . 8,764,100
$ —-$ 176014984 $_ 175,011,420

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONSAND NET ASSETS (DEFICIENCY)

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note6) . ....... $ ) 2122017 $  25094,157

Current portion of long-term debt (note 7). ............... 197,591

21,222,017 25,291,748

Deferred contributions for capital assets (note9). ......... 145,506,715 149,208,179
Other liabilities:

Retirement alowance payable (note8). ................ 8,764,100 11,390,778

Net assets (deficiency):

unrestricted. .. ... (11,817,142)
Restricted (note1(C)). .. ..o oot 160,945 160,945
Invested in capital assets(note10). . .................. 361,207 776,912

522,152 (10,879,285)

$ —-$ 176014984 $_ 175011420

Contingency (note 13)

See accompanying notesto financial statements
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CAPE BRETON HEALTHCARE COMPLEX

Statement of Operations
Year ended March 31, 2001, with compar ative figuresfor 2000

2001 2000
Operations.
Income:
Net patient income:
Provincia plan. ... b 84,168,764 $ 112,387,246
OB . . 7,010,278 8,587,059
(D)1 ez AV (= ¢ )V/= (1= 770,649 1,050,570
Medical SErVICEINSUIaNCE . . . ..ottt 4,747,779 6,675,658
Referred inWork. . ... 117,762 145,300
MISCEIIANEOUS. . . . ..o 255,454 433,372
Netdifferential .......... 1,250,587 1,289,461
INVESIMENt iNCOME . . ... e 226,750 140,297
Equipment grant. . . ...t e 28,881 38,508
98,576,904 130,747,471
Expenses:
Administrativeand SUPPOIrt SErVICES . . . ..o v i e e 24,707,028 33,106,356
NUrsing iNPatient SErVICES . . . ..o 38,351,057 51,270,928
AmbUlatory Care SBIVICES . . ..ottt e 16,228,290 20,408,194
Diagnostic and therapeutic ServiceS . . . ..o oo e 18,887,373 24,840,606
EAUCAION . . ..ot 403,156 821,868
Saaries-vacation. . ... 318,965
Capital debt assistance. . . ......ccoviii e (19,446)
98,576,904 130,747,471
Excess of revenue over expenditures before below noteditems. . ...........
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets. .. ......... 5,918,545 9,394,080
Amortization of capital 8SSEtS. . . ... ..ot (5,907,886) (9,404,739)
Retirement allowance (Note8). .. .. ...t (792,000) (1,201,138)
Department of Health funding for retirement alowance (note8). ............ 792,000
Gain on funding for and quantification of retirement allowance (note 8). . . . .. 11,390,778
11,401,437 (1,211,797)
Excess of revenue over expenditure (expenditure over revenue). . ........... b 11401437 ¢ (1,211,797)
Statement of Changesin Net Assets
Year ended March 31, 2001, with compar ative figuresfor 2000
Investment in 2001 2000
Unrestricted Restricted capital assets Total Total
Balance, beginning of
vear........... §f (11,817,142)% 160,945 $ 776,912 % (10,879,285) ¢  (9,667,483)
Excess of revenue over
expenditure (expenditure
overrevenue) ........... 11,390,778 10,659 11,401,437 (1,211,797)
Net change in investment in
capital assets (note 10) . 426,364 (426,364)
Balance at December 31,
2000 prior to
distribution. ............ 160,945 361,207 522,152 (10,879,285)
Distribution of net assetsto
successor entity (note 11):
Cape Breton District
Health Authority. ... ... (160,945) (361,207) (522,152)
Balance, end of year . .. .. $ — 3 — $ -} — ¢ (10,879,285)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CAPE BRETON HEALTHCARE COMPLEX

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2001, with compar ative figuresfor 2000

2001 2000
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities;
Excess of revenue over expenditure (expenditure over revenue). . ......... b 11,401,437 ¢ (1,211,797)
Items not involving cash:
Amortization of capital @ssetS. . ... ..o 5,907,886 9,404,739
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets. ... ... (5,918,545) (9,394,080)
Gain on funding for and quantification of retirement allowance ........... (11,390,778)
Increaseinretirementalowance. . ...t e 792,000
Increase in Department of Health payable for retirement allowance. ... ... (792,000)
Change in non-cash operating working capital:
Decrease inaccountsreceivable. ............ ... ... .. 1,542,266 78,697,540
DECrEase iNINVENONES. . . o oo ettt iiaeas 21,009 70,939
Decrease in prepaid EXPENSES. . . ..ot v et 205,578 1,150,645
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ... ... .. (3,872,140) 4,829,735
Decreaseindueto Departmentof Health . ......................... (75,779,345)
(2,103,287) 7,768,376
Financing and investing activities.
Repayment of long-termdebt. ........... ... . (197,591) (19,446)
Purchases of capital 8SSetS . ... ..o ot (1,498,757) (9,218,191)
Contribution for capital 8SSEtS. . . ..o vt 2,217,081 8,791,827
520,733 (445,810)
Other activities
Increaseinretirementadlowance. . ... 1,201,138
Distribution of cash and internally restricted cash to successor entity. . . . . .. (6,310,593)
Increase (decrease) iNCash POSItioN . . ..o oot e i (7,893,147) 8,523,704
Cash position, beginningof year . ...t 7,893,147 (630,557)
Cashposition, end Of YEar . ... ) — & 7,893,147
Cash isrepresented by the following:
Cashinternallyrestricted . .. ... b — ¢ 160,945
Cash . 7,732,202
) - % 7,893,147
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CAPE BRETON HEALTHCARE COMPLEX

Notesto Financial Statements
Year ended March 31, 2001

Effective April 1, 1996, the Governor in Council of the Province of Nova Scotia approved
"An Act to Incorporate Cape Breton Heathcare Complex". Under this Act the Cape Breton
Regional Hospital, Glace Bay Healthcare Corporation, New Waterford Consolidated
Hospital and the Northside Harbour View Hospital were amagamated and continued
as one corporate body under the name Cape Breton Healthcare Complex.

The Hospital's principal activity is providing acute and psychiatric health care to the
residents of Industrial Cape Breton and surrounding areas.

On June 8, 2000, Bill #34 - The Health Authorities Act, received Royal Assent. Thislegislation abolished
Regional Health Boards and replaced them with Health Authorities. The effects on the former Cape
Breton Healthcare Complex are as follows: Cape Breton Regional Hospital, Glace Bay Healthcare
Corporation, New Waterford Consolidated Hospital, Northside Harbour View Hospital, Inverness
Consolidated Memoria Hospital, Sacred Heart Healthcare Centre, Victoria County Memorial Hospital
and Buchanan Memorial Healthcare Centre form District Health Authority #8. As a result of this
legidlation, the Cape Breton Headthcare Complex ceased operation effective December 31, 2000. All
assets and liabilities of the former Cape Breton Healthcare Complex were transferred to the District
Health Authority #8 resulting in no assetsor liabilities at March 31, 2001.

Significant accounting policies:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows

(a) Revenuerecognition:
The Complex follows the deferra method of accounting for contributions which include
donations and government grants.

The Complex is funded primarily by the Province of Nova Scotia in accordance with
budget arrangements established by the Department of Heath. Operating grants are
recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. Grants approved but not

received at the end of an accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant

relates to afuture period, it is deferred and recognized in that subsequent period.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable
if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably
assured.

Externally  restricted contributions, other than endowment contributions, are
recognized as revenue in the vyear in which the related expenses are
recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capita assets are deferred
and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate corresponding with
the amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses
arerecognized. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned.

(b) Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost

(c) Restricted
Funds donated from outside agencies or individuals which have been designated for a
specific purpose have been restricted.

(d) Capital assets:
Capital assets are stated at cost.

Capital assets are amortized on the straight-line basis using the following annual rates.

Asset Rates
Land improvements 5%
Buildings and service equipment 2%-5%
Major equi pment 5%-20%
Equipment under capital |ease 10%-20%
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Accountsreceivable:

March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Patients (less allowance for doubtful accounts) . . . . .. $ - % 741115 $ 916,922
Medica serviceinsurance. . .............oooeenn.. 304,061 255,121
Department of Community Services............... 84,000 71,610
Level 1l Care (less allowance for doubtful accounts) . . 446,131 735,623
Harmonizedsalestax . .............ccoviiiinn... 642,254 590,950
Hospital Foundations (note12). .................. 532,114 236,167
VEEaNS. ... o 260,664
SUNAIY .« e 850,180 405,442
Department of Health (note 3):
Estimated year end adjustment . . ............... 238,401
Capitd Funding............................. 3,347,788 5,300,337
Vacationaccrual . ..ot 5,608,548 5,608,548
$ -} 12816855 ¢ 14,359,121
Accountswith the Department of Health:
March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Accountsreceivable:
Retirement dlowance (note 8). . ................ $ - % 8,764,100 $
Estimated year end adjustment. . ............... 238,401
Capitd funding. ............coviiiii.. 3,347,788 5,300,337
Vecationaccrud. ............ooii i 5,608,548 5,608,548
$ -— 17720436 ¢ 11,147,286

Collectablility of the estimated receivable is dependent on obtaining approval for certain expenditures.

The adjustment, if any, on the ultimate settlement of the above amountswill be accounted for as achargeto
or credit against income in the period in which settlement occurs.

Inventories:

March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Medical andsurgical. . .........cooiiii i $ - % 489,710 ¢ 519,175
DIUDS. . oottt 883,463 819,844
Food........cooiii 68,406 60,080
GeNEra .. 844,963 908,452
$ -— 2286542 $ 2,307,551

Capital assets:

Net book value

March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Land. ... $ - % 361,207 $ 361,207
Landimprovements. ..........oviiiiinnennnn... 2,470,225 2,598,140
Buildings and serviceequipment ... .............. 127,129,824 128,962,426
Equipment. . ...t 15,614,706 18,063,318
$ - ¥ 145575962 ¢ 149,985,091
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Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

March 31, December 31, March 31,

2001 2000 2000

Accountspayable. ... $ - % 6,627,000 $ 9,086,598
Due to Department of Health:

Advances by Provincial Plan-current........... 4,662,305 4,698,500
Employee deductionspayable..................... 19,328 1,032,166
Accrued salaries,

SAAIES. . oo 4,118,728 3,603,641

Wageparityaccrual .............. ... .. ...... 401,071

Vacationpayaccrual. .........coovviinnn... 5,501,889 5,927,519
Otheraccruas. ..., 209,230 232,332
Payableforequipment .. ............. ... .. ....... 83,447 112,330

$ -— 21222017 $ 25,094,157
L ong-term debt:
March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Department of Health:

Capital debt assistanceloan. . .................. $ - % - ¢ 197,591

Current portion of long-termdebt . ................. (197,591)
$ — 3 — 8

Retirement allowance:

During the year the Department of Health requested that Nova Scotia Health Boards recognize
in their financia statements both the liability for retiring allowances and the related commitment by
the Department of Health to fund same.

To promote consistency amongst Boards, the Department engaged consulting actuaries to quantify
for each Regiona Board the retiring allowance liability and expense for years up to March 31,
2000 along with a projection of the expense and liability for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001.

In compliance with the Department's request, the Cape Breton Healthcare Complex, in the current fiscal
period, has recorded a net gain of $11,390,778 in respect of retiring allowances accrued up to March 31, 2000
which gain comprises the following:

* Funding receivable from the Department for the actuarially determined liability

AMACN 3L, 2000, . . ..ottt e $ 7,972,100

* Adjustment to reduce the previously estimated liability at March 31, 2000
of $11,390,778 to the actuarially determined liability of $7,972,100. .................... 3,418,678
$__ 11390778

In addition, the Complex has included in income from the Department of Health an additional receivable
of $792,000 to match the retiring allowance expense computed with reference to the actuarial
projection of expense for the year.

Deferred contributionsrelated to capital assets:

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount
of donations and grants received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization
of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations. The changes in the
deterred contributions balance during the year are asfollows:;

March 31, December 31, March 31,

2001 2000 2000

Balance, beginning of period. . ................... $ 145506,715% 149208179 ¢ 149,810,432

Additional contributionsreceived. ................. 2,217,081 8,791,827
Lessamountsamortizedtorevenue. ............... (5,918,545) (9,394,080)

Distributed to successor entity. .. .......cooiiin. (145,506,715)

Baance, endof period . ... $ - % 145506,715 $ 149,208,179
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The balance of unamortized capital contributions related to capital assets consists of the following:

March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Unamortized capital contribution used to purchase
BSOS . .t $ - % 145214,755 ¢ 149,208,179
Unspent contributions. .. ..., 291,960
Balance, endof period . ........... ... $ - § 145506,715 $ 149,208,179
Invested in capital assets:
a) Investment in capital assetsis calculated asfollows;
March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Capital 8SSEtS . . ..o $ - % 145575962 $ 149,985,091
Amounts financed by:
Deferred contributions. .. ................... 145,214,755 149,208,179
$ -} 361,207 $ 776,912
b) Changein net assetsinvested in capital assetsis calculated asfollows
March 31, December 31, March 31,
2001 2000 2000
Excess of expenses over revenue:
Amortization of deferred contributions
related to capital ass&ts. . ... ..ot $ - % 5918545 ¢ 9,394,080
Amortization of capital assets. .............. (5,907,886) (9,404,739)
$ -— 10658 ¢ (10,659)
Net change in investment in capital assets:;
Purchaseof capital assets. .. ................ $ - % 1498757 $ 9,218,191
Amounts funded by:
Deferred contributions. . ................. (1,925,121) (8,791,827)
Net capital assets distributed to
SUCCESSOr eNntity. . ..o oo (361,207)
$ (361,207) % (426,364) ¢ 426,364

Transfer of assets on dissolution:

As a result of dissolution, the Cape Breton Healthcare Complex has distributed its net assets
(consisting of deferred contributions) to the Cape Breton District Health Authority (District Health

Authority #8) asfollows

Balance Distribution to
December 31, District Health
2000 Authority #8
Assets distributed:
Cash. .. ) 6,149,648 $ 6,149,648
Internally restricted cash . ... ..o ot 160,945 160,945
AccountsrecaiVable. . . ... 12,816,855 12,816,855
1017 010 = 2,286,542 2,286,542
Prepaid BXPENSES. . ..ottt 260,932 260,932
Capital BTt . oot 145,575,962 145,575,962
Other receivable - retirement dlowances. . . ...ttt 8,764,100 8,764,100
176,014,984 176,014,984
Lessliabilities assumed:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . . ....................... 21,222,017 21,222,017
Deferred contributionsfor capital assets. . .......ooiii e 145,506,715 145,506,715
Other ligbility - retirementdlowance. . ................cinn... 8,764,100 8,764,100
175,492,832 175,492,832
Net assetsdistributed . . ... ) 522152 ¢ 522,152
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Consisting of:

Internally restricted. . . ... ) 160,945 ¢ 160,945
Investment incapital 8sSetS. ... ..ot 361,207 361,207
¥ 522152 % 522,152

Related party transactions:

The Hospital is related to the Cape Breton Regional Hospital Foundation, Northside
Hospital Charitable Foundation, New Waterford Consolidated Charitable Foundation
and the Glace Bay Hedthcare Corporation Charitable Foundation. The Foundations
primary purpose is to raise funds to assist in the construction of and the supply of
certain equipment for the Hospital.

The following amounts were due from the Foundations as at the dated indicated:

December 31, March 31,
2000 2000
Cape Breton Regional Hospital Foundation. ...................... ) 532,114 $ 236,167

The following amounts represent the transfer from the Foundations as at the dates indicated:

Nine months
ended Y ear ended
December 31, March 31,
2000 2000
Cape Breton Regional Hospital Foundation. . ...................... $ - 3 490,765
New Waterford Consolidated Charitable Foundation . ............... 117,933
Glace Bay Hedthcare Corporation Charitable Foundation .. ........... 283,555
$ - $ 892,253

Contingency:

Funds required to settle labour dispute:

The financial statements contain an accrual for the expected cost of contact settlement with the
Nova Scotia Nurses Union in respect of retroactive amounts owing from November 1, to March 31,
2001. The estimate was based on a directive from the Department of Health to accrue a 1.9%
increase. The actual cost of settlement may differ from that accrued in the financial
statements. Any differences will be recognized in the period of settlement. It is the Department
of Health's position that any costs associated with the settlement will be financed by the Department
and therefore there is no effect on net income.
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AUDITORS REPORT

To the Chairperson and Members

Cape Breton Victoria Regional School Board
Georae Street

Svdney, Nova Scotia

We have audited the balance sheets of the Cape Breton-Victoria Redional School Board as at Marck
31, 2001, and the statement of operations for the vyear then ended. These financia statements
are the responsbility of the Cape Breton-Victoria Redional School Board's management. Our
responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with aenerally accepted auditing standards. Thost
standards require that we plan and peform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial dstatements are free of materia  misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test bass, evidence supportina the amounts and disclosures in  the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessng the accountina principles used anc
sonificant estimates made by management, as wel as evduating the overal financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financia satements present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financia position of the Cape Breton-Victoria Regiona School Board as a March 31, 2001
and the results of its operations for the vear then ended in accordance
with  aenerally  accepted  accounting  principles  established  for  school boards in the
Province of Nova Scotia.

ROACH PERRY ANDERSON
Chartered Accountants

Svdney, Nova Scotia
June 20, 2001
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Consolidated Balance Sheet

March 31, 2001
ASSETS
2001 2000
Current
Accounts receivable
First Nation. . ...coo e e 194,195 $ 496,520
Government of Canada (Note2). ..., 385,566 638,528
Provinceof NovaScotia(Note3) . .............ccvevnn., 1.426,172 4,057,063
Other. ..o 773,266 290,628
Prepaid BXDENSES . . . oot 63,830 69,249
INVENEOIIES. . . ottt e e 156,450 144,395
2,999,479 5,696,383
Restricted assets
Cashandinvestments. . ...t 383,515 382,637
Other assets
Deferred Early Retirement Plan expenditures (Note4) ........... 36,135,440
Cash restricted for teachers serviceawards. . .................. 3,874 3,874
3,874 36,139,314
Fixed assets (Note 5)
School buildings. . . ... 56,096,216 56,096,216
INterest INProPENtiES. . ..ottt et e 14,421,084 14,054,180
Eaquipment and furnishinas. . ...t 12,268,199 11,598,548
School buses and maintenancevehicles. ...................... 8,393,049 8,041,458
Assetsundercapital lease. . ... 137,151 137,151
91,315,699 89,927,553
94,702,567 $ 132,145,887
LIABILITIES
Current
Cheques issued in excess of fundsondeposit. .................. 2,057,198 $ 515,427
Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities. ..................... 737,956 3,655,052
Advances pavable to Department of Education. ................ 620,000
Deferredrevenue. . ...t 1,150,154 663,904
3,945,308 5,454,383
Other liabilities
Obligation under Early Retirement Plan (Note4). ............... 36,135,440
Teachers serviceawards, intrust .. ..., 3,874 3,874
Teacherretraininafund . ........ ... .. .. .. . i, 50,000 50,000
53,874 36,189,314
EQUITY
Reserves
Scholarshiptrust fundreserve. . ... ... 383,515 382,637
Reserve for future operations (Note 7). .. .....oove e, 500,000
383,515 882,637
DEfiCIt . o oo (995,829) (308,000)
Investment incapital @8ssets. . .. ..o 91,315,699 89,927,553
90,319,870 89,619,553
94,702,567 $ 132,145,887
See accompanying notes to financia statements.
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Operating Fund Balance Sheet

March 31, 2001
ASSETS
2001 2000
Current
Accounts receivable:
First Nation. .. ...t e $ 194,195 $ 496,250
Government of Canada(Note2). . ...........cooivinin.. 385,566 638,528
Provinceof NovaScotia(Note3) . ................ccnnn. 1,426,172 4,057,063
Other. ..o 773,266 290,628
Prepaid BXDENSES . . . oot 63,830 69,249
INVENTONIES. . . ot e e 156,450 144,395
2,999,479 5,696,113
Other assets
Deferred Early Retirement Plan expenditures (Note4) ........... 36,135,440
Cash restricted for teachers serviceawards. . .................. 3,874 3,874
3.874 36,139,314
$ 3,003.353 $ 41,835,427
LIABILITIES
Current
Chequesissued in excess of fundsondeposit. .. ................ $ 2,057,198 $ 515,427
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . .................... 737,956 3,655,052
Advances payable to Department of Education. ................ 620,000
Deferredrevenue. . ...t 1,150,154 663,904
3,945,308 5,454,383
Other Liabilities:
Oblioation under Early Retirement Plan (Note4). ............... 36,135,440
Teachers serviceawards, intrust . . ..., 3.874 3,874
Teacher retraininafund . ........... .. ... i 50,000 50,000
53,874 36,189,314
EQUITY
Reserve:
Reserve for future operations (Note7) . .. ..., 500,000
DEfICI. ..ot (995,829) (308,000)
$ 3,003,353 $ 41,835,697

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Statement of Operations
Year ended March 31, 2001

2001 2001 2000
Budoet Actual Actual
Revenue
Province of Nova Scotie
Formulafunding (Schedule A). . .......... 5 93,856,100 $ 03,284,900 $ 94,133,758
Other (ScheduleA). . ................... 642,275 1,209,426 1,920,106
Deficitassistance ...................... 1,662,572
Contribution for future operations (Note 7) . . 500,000
Transfer from Reserve (Note7) ........... 500,000 500,000
94,998,375 94,994,326 98,216,436
First Nation TuitionRevenue. .. ............... 609,950 699,905 736,967
Government of Canada (Schedule A) .. ........ 211,000 210,696 345,911
Appropriation from Councils (Schedule A) . . . .. 12,001.800 12,001,752 12,175,800
Board operations (Schedule A) . .............. 2,321,347 2,433,408 1,171,666
110,142,472 110,340,087 112,646,780
Expenditures (Schedule B):
Boardmanagement . ....................... 2,641,962 2,687,609 3,369,957
School administration and instruction. ......... 85,403,109 85,760,294 84,997,588
Property service. ... 9,780,716 10,592,426 10,352,404
Pupil transportation .. ..................... 4,727,927 4,995,234 4,729,517
Specia education. .. ... 4,692,525 4,875,475 4,048,999
Adulteducation. . ........... .. ... 141,371 128,208 136,678
Summerschool ............... ... ... ... 12,800 9,348 10,417
Cafeteria . ..o 611,502 642,037 629,271
Adultdayschool .......................... 356,785 392,318 398,436
Capital equipmentandrepairs............... 1,763,775 1,243,520 2,817,493
Specid initiatives. . ... 192,976
Boardof pupils. ........... ... ... L. 10,000 9,447 10,987
Deferred serviceawards. .. ................. 570,443
Debt servicina - operating loans. .. ........... 158,133
Deficitof priorvear. . ...................... 31,481
110,142,472 111,335,916 112,454,780
Excess of revenue over expenditures (expenditures
over revenue) beforebelow noted. .. .......... (995,829) 192,000
Transfer to reserve for future operations (Note 7). . . (500,000)
Excess of expendituresover revenue. ............. 5 - $ (995,829) $ (308,000)

See accompanying notes to financia statements.
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Statement of Deficit
Year ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000
Deficit, beainninoof Vear. . . ...t $ (308,000) (31.481)
Deficit transferred to current Operations . ... ..o oo vi i 31,481
Deficit transferred to accounts receivable (Note6) . ................ 308,000
EXcess expenditureS OVEr reVENUE . . . ..ot vt e e e e eeeae (995,829) (308,000)
Deficit, end Of VEar. . . ...ttt $ (995,829) (308,000)
Statement of Reserve for Future Operations
Year ended March 31, 2001
2001 2000
Balance, bedinning of Vear. . ...ttt $ 500,000
Transfer (to) from operations (Note 7). . .............coooiinn.... (500,000) 500,000
Balance, end of VEAr. .. ..o oot $ 500,000
Capital Fund Balance Sheet
March 31, 2001
ASSETS

2001 2000

Fixed assets (Note 5)
School buildings, land .. ... it $ 56,096,216 56,096,216
INterest iINProPENtIES. . ..ottt et 14,421,084 14,054,180
Eaquipment and furnishinas. . ... 12,268,199 11,598,548
School buses and maintenancevehicles. ....................... 8,393,049 8,041,458
Assetsunder capital 1€ases. .. ... 137,151 137,151
$ 91,315,699 89.927.553

EQUITY

Investment in Capital ASSELS. ... ..ottt $ 91,315,699 89,927,553

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Statement of Investment in Capital Assets
Year ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000
Balance, bedginninaof vear. . ......... .. $ 89,927,553 $ 87.596,991
Capital purchases funded from operations:
INterest iNProPErtieS . ... v ot et 366,903 800,274
Eaquipment and furnishinas. ... ... i, 669,652 912,931
School buses and maintenancevehicles ....................... 738,545 737,554
1,775,100 2.450,759
Retirement of school busesandvehicles. ......................c.... (386,954) (120,197)
Balance, end of VEaAr . ... .ot $ 91,315,699 $ 89,927,553
Scholarship Trust Fund Balance sheet
March 31, 2001
2001 2000
ASSETS
Cashand investmentS. .. ..ottt e $ 383,515 $ 382,637
RESERVE FOR SCHOLARSHIPS

Rossetti Scholarship . ..o oo $ 164,850 $ 164,320
Townsend Scholarship. . ....co oo e 1,007 1,005
McDonagh Scholarship. ............. .. 5,064 5,009
Panagiotakos Scholarship . .. ..o oo e e 9,019 9,016
McQuarrieScholarship . ......... ... . 3,206 3,190
AnnieHall Scholarship........... ... . i 2,025 2,012
CJCB.Scholarship. ..o 4,228 3,998
Daniel MunroeScholarship . . ... oo 3,181 3,072
John D. MacLeod Scholarship. ...t 1,058 1,023
AnnieBell Grady Memoria . ........... . i 20,905 21,154
T.L.SullivanMemorial . ........ ..o 2,205 2,794
Mary Elizabeth Brennan Scholarship . ........................... 2,414 2,375
William HillchieMemorial. . ... 3,124 3,070
Isabel MacDermidMemorial . ... 3,246 3,186
Wendell Coldwell Memorial ............... 2,123 2,083
JonDavid Corbett . .. ..ot 3,200 3,214
Leonard Matheson. . ...t 1,435 1,427
EllenDunnBalah........... ... . 5,188 5,348
GeorgeMacKay BUIrSary .. ....oov et 145,839 145,160
Dorothy WilKins . . ..ot e 198 181
$ 383,515 $ 382,637

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CAPE BRETON DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

Statement of Scholarship Trust Fund Reserve
Year ended March 31, 2001, with compar ative figuresfor 2000

Rossetti Townsend McDonagh Panagiotakos  McQuarrie AnnieHall CJCB Munro
Balance, beginning of year . ... .. $ 164,320 $ 1,005 $ 5,009 $ 9,016 $ 3,190 $ 2012 $ 3,998 $ 3,072
Interestearned ... ........... 8,830 47 255 443 186 93 230 179
173,150 1,052 5,264 9,459 3,376 2,105 4,228 3,251
Scholarship awarded. . ... ..... 8,300 45 200 440 170 80 70
Balance, endof year.......... $ 164,850 $ 1,007 $ 5,064 $ 9,019 $ 3,206 $ 2,025 $ 4,228 $ 3,181
Macl eod Grady Sullivan Brennan Hillchie MacDermid Coldwell
Balance, beginningof year ............... $ 1,023 $ 21,154 $ 2,794 $ 2375 % 3,070 $ 3,186 $ 2,083
Interestearned . ............ ... 60 1,251 161 139 179 185 120
1,083 22,405 2,955 2,514 3,249 3,371 2,203
Scholarshipawarded. . .............. 25 1,500 750 100 125 125 80
Balance,endofyear.................. $ 1,058 $ 20,905 $ 2,205 $ 2414 % 3124 $ 3,246 $ 2,123
2001 2000
Corbert M atheson Dunn Balah MacK ay Wilkins Total Total
Balance, beginningofyear.................. $ 3214 $ 1,427 $ 5,348 $ 145,160 $ 181 $ 382,637 $ 381,521
Interestearned . .............. ... ... 186 83 340 9,979 17 22,963 21,118
3,400 1,510 5,688 155,139 198 405,600 402,639
Scholarshipawarded. . ...................... 200 75 500 9,300 22,085 20,002
Balance,endofyear....................... $ 3,200 $ 1435 % 5,188 $ 145,839 $ 198 $ 383,515 $ 382,637

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




CAPE BRETON VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Notesto Financial Statements
Year ended March 31, 2001

Pursuant to an act passed by the Province of Nova Scotia, the Cape Breton District
School Board and the Northside Victoria District School Board were amadamatec
to form the Cape Breton-Victoria Regional School Board. The School Board s
incorporated under the provisions of the Education Act of the Province of Nova Scotic
and its principa business activity is operatina a redional school system serving the
Cape Breton Redional Municipality and the Municipality of the County of Victoria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accountina:

These financia statements have been prepared to conform in all material respects tc

the accounting principles prescribed by the Nova Scotia District  School Boarc
Financial Handbook.

(A)  Financia Statement Presentation:

The financia satements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with
the fund basis of accounting.

(B) Revenue and Expenditures Recoanition:

Revenue and expenditures are recorded usina the modified accrual basis of
accountina. Maior revenues and expenditures are recorded on the accrual basis
except for principa and interest payments relating to term debt, which are recorded
as an expense when paid. Fixed assets acquired with operating funds are recorded
as an expenditure when incurred. Accruas for teachers sdaries at the beainninc
and end of a particular vear are netted so that 195 days sdary is recorded as an
expense. Outstanding purchase orders a the baance sheet date are accrued anc
recorded as payables.

(C) Fixed Assets:

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Funds received through capita assistance proarams
are treated as additions to the investment in capital assets. The interest in school
properties reflects only those capital expenditures made since the formation of the
Cape Breton District School Board. Furniture and eaquipment purchased prior tc
January 1, 1982 have not been recorded in the capital fund. The School Board does
not record depreciation on its fixed assets.

(D) Teacher Service Awards,

Teacher service awards are accounted for an "as paid' basis rather than as the liability
isaccruing. As at March 31, no estimate has been made of the potential liability for thisitem.

ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE, GOVERNMENT OF CANADA

2001 2000

Harmonized saleStax .. .......coiiii e $ 173,899 $ 324,860
Other. ..o 211,667 313,668
$ 385,566 $ 638,528
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ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE. PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA

2001 2000

Capital infrastructure. . ...t $ - $ 132,333
Special capital Projects. .. ... 90,000 417,310
Information Economy Initiative. . ........................ 428,133 546,060
P-3transitiona fundina .. ......... ... .. 100,000
Special INItiatiVes. . . ..o 202,400
P-3maintenancefunding................c i 393,062
Other . oo 176.826 203,326
Library books/ Materials P-3 Schools/Boularderie. .. ......... 164,923 1,662,572
Contribution for futureoperations. . .. .................... 500,000
Fuelrebate. . ... 399,100 ---
Sherwood Park Technoloay Refresh. . ..................... 67,190
$ 1426172 $ 4,057,063

EARLY RETIREMENT PLAN

Durina the 2000-2001 fiscal vear, the Province of Nova Scotia assumed full responsibility for the
Early Retriement plan (1994-1998).

FIXED ASSETS

On January 1, 1982, the Municipality of the County of Cape Breton, the City of Svdnev
and the Towns of Louisbourq, Dominion, New Waterford and Glace Bay formed the
Cape Breton Didrict School Board. Under the agreement, dl land and school buildings
on hand at December 31, 1981 remain assets of the municipal unit but will be under the
operational control of the District School Board until such time as the Board no lonaer
requires the assets for school purposes. At that time, control will revert back to the
municipality.

In 1970 the former Northside Victoria District School Board acquired title to certain land
and buildinos from its supportina municipalities which were to be offered back to the
municipalities at no cost if thev were ever declared surplus by the Board. With the
amalgamation of the two Boards, the agreements with municipalities for land and school
buildinas remains unchanaed.

As a result of improvements made to school buildings, the Cape Breton-Victoria Regional
School Board now has an interest in rea property to which it does not have title. Under
the Education Act, should a municipal unit sell a building returned to it by the Reaional
School Board under the circumstances noted above, a portion of the proceeds will be
payable to the Regiona School Board. In the event of the destruction of the building such
that insurance proceeds are pavable, a portion of these proceeds, related to the
improvements, will similarly be pavable to the Regional School Board.

DEFICIT ASSISTANCE

During the vear, it has been determined that $308,000 in residual deficit from a prior vear shoulc
be recoverable pursuant to settlement of litigation between the Nova Scotia School Boards Associatior
and the Nova Scotia Teachers Union Trustees over a matter involving the teacher Salary Continuation
Insurance Proaram (SALCON). Conseguently, this balance was transferred from accumulatec
deficit to accounts receivable during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001.
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10.

11.

12.

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE

During the vear, the Board was directed to transfer $500,000 to operations from a Reserve
for Future Operations that had been established the previous fiscal year with special fundinc
received from the Department of Education.

DEFERRED TEACHERS SALARIES

Under terms of the teachers contract the School Board withholds a portion of certain

diaible teachers sdaries and deposits it with the Nova Scotia Teachers Credit
Union. These amounts are subsequently withdrawn by the teachers in a vear when
they ae on leave of absencee As a Mach 31, 2001, the Board had $896,820
($1,010,490 at March 31, 2000) of such funds on deposit together with a correspondinc

liability to these teachers which amounts have not been included in these financia
statements.

PENSION PLANS

The Board's teachers are covered bv a pension plan established by the Province pursuant
to the Teachers Pension Act.

The Board's non-teachina staff ae covered by a monev-purchase pension plan
administered by the Confederation Life Insurance Company

INSURANCE

The Board is a member of a sdf insurance plan with the Nova Scotia School Boarc
Association.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

These financial statements do not include certain expenditures paid on behalf of the Board by the
Province of Nova Scotia, including but not limited to:

- Early Retirement Proaram payments,

- P-3school and facilities |eases and operating costs, and

- Pavmentsfor the teachers pension plans and medical premiums.
COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The presentation of certain accounts of the previous vear, presented for comparative purposes,

has been changed to conform with the presentation adopted for the current vear. The vear
ended March 31, 2000, was audited by another public accounting firm.
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Schedule A - Supplementary Details of Revenue
Year ended March 31, 2001

Budget Actual
Province of Nova Scotia, formula funding:
Unrestricted fundind . .. ...t $ 85,984,700 85,984,700
Restricted fundina:
Special education. . ....... .. 6,203,200 6,203,200
Capital buspurchase. ...........cco i 571,200
Textbook credit allocation. . ..., 1,097,000 1,097,000
$ 93,856,100 93,284,900
Province of Nova Scotia, other fundina:
Fuel subSidy . . . ..o 559,100
P-3 Transitional funding. . ............ ..o, 100,000 100,000
Capital teChNolOOY. . . . .ottt 200,000 200,000
Sherwood Park Technoloay Refresh. .. ............ .. oot 67,189
Correctional proaram arant. . .. ......cve it 34,700 35,918
Information Economy Initiative. .. ........... ... ... .. ..... 307,575 247,219
$ 642,275 1,209,426
First Nation TuitionRevenue. .. ........... ..., $ 609,950 699,905
Government of Canada:
HRDC VocationSeat and Grant. . ... ....covveiiiineinnnnnnn $ 9,000 -
Secretary of State:
Minority lanquage. . . .......... 56,000 45,387
Frenchimmersion......... ... ... 146,000 165,309
$ 211.000 210,696
Appropriation from Councils:
Mandatory:
Cape Breton Reaional Municipaity . ........ $ 10,746,614 10,746,565
County of Victoria...............oovnn... 1,255,186 1,255,187
$ 12,001,800 12,001,752
Board operations:;
Insurance proceeds (deferred). .. ... oo $ 69,338
(07 =1 - 3N 611,502 642,037
Investment interest . . ...t s 150,000 222,698
Adult night school fees. . ... 65,671 71418
Adultday school fees. ... 91,750 137,735
Rentals (facilitiesandbuses) .. ............. ... o i 58,600 62,566
Vocational school revenues. . ..., 26,000 11,409
P-3 property servicecharges. . . ....oov i 1,188,486 1,154,609
TUILION (OVEr 20). .ottt e et 10,000 12,233
RoseTechnoloay . ...t e 64,276
Other. ..o 50,000 54,427
$ 2321347 $__ 2,433,408
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Schedule B - Supplementary Details of Expenditures
Year ended March 31, 2001

Budget Actual
Board management:
Salaries, wages and employee benefits. . ...................... $ 1,996,856 $ 1,925,515
Suppliesand materials. .. ..o 113,206 124,697
Conference/ln ServicelMeetings. . . ..., 67,700 61,277
Feesanddues. ...t 40,000 40,706
Telephone. . . ..o e 49,200 41,825
TravEl . o 29,500 26,901
Ledal feeS. . .ot 100,000 164,021
(] r=ox P 122,000 141,653
INSUFANCE. . . . oot 55,000 55,246
OthEr. . o 68,500 105,768
$ 2641962 $ 2,687,609
School administration and instruction:
Salaries, wages and employee benefits. . ............... ... $ 82,086,938 $ 82,496,566
Suppliesand MaterialS. .. ... 1,157,536 1,131,918
Professional development. . ............. .. ... . 316,666 316,666
Net cost for supplementary arants (ScheduleC) . ............... 42377
TAEPhONE. . . .o 329,969 319,237
TraVE . e 169,000 159,967
O hEr. .. 190,000 149,273
Frenchminority. . ... 56,000 47,290
Textbook alocation. . ...t 1,097,000 1,097,000
$ 85,403,109 $ 85,760,294
Property service:
Salaries, wanes and employee benefits. .. ........ ... ... $ 4942420 $ 5,073,047
Suppliesand materials. ...........c i 704,500 724,716
Utilitiesand Fuel. .. ........ ... 3,250,466 3,809,975
Meterage/In Service/Conference/Seminars. .. .........coooeen.. 26,000 15,522
Vehicleoperation. . ...t e 54,000 67,368
INSUFANCE. . . . oot 289,850 289,851
Contracted SErVICES . . oot 426,980 530,499
Rental of facilities. .......... ... i 86,500 81,448
$ 9,780,716 $ 10,592,426
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Schedule B - Supplementary Details of Expenditures (continued)

Pupil transportation:

Year ended March 31, 2001

Salaries, waoes and emplovee benefits. ........... .o L

Vehicle operation. . . .
Vehiclereaistration. . .
Insurance. ..........

Garage operation . . . ..

Meterage/In Service/Conference/Seminars. .. ....covveieenn..

Contract convevance .

Specia education:

Salaries, wages and employee benefits. . ............ .. ... ... ..

Supplies and materials
Fees and contracts. . . .

Adult education:

Salaries, wages and employee benefits. . ................ . ... ..

Supplies and materials

Summer school:

Salaries, wages and employee benefits. .. ... oL

Supplies and materials

Budget Actual
3,358,589 3,363,272
855,188 1,101,131
67,000 73,094
46,000 44,520
75,000 92,709
8,000 15,335
256,150 256,956
51,000 10,628
11,000 37,589
4,727,927 4,995,234
4,622,787 4,809,190
67,738 64,709
2,000 1,576
4,692,525 4,875,475
132,871 120,668
8,500 7,540
141,371 128,208
12,000 8,100
800 1,248
12.800 9.348
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Schedule B - Supplementary Details of Expenditures (continued)
Year ended March 31, 2001

Budget Actual
School cafeterias and lunchrooms:
Salaries, wages and emplovee benefits. . ............... ... $ 250,504 242,370
Suppliesand materials. ...........oo i 360,998 364,326
Profitshare. . ... 35,341
$ 611,502 642,037
Adult day school:
Salaries, wanes and employee benefits. .. ... L $ 348,000 347,972
Suppliesand materials. . ...t 5,000 8,832
Rentals. ... 32,829
TAEDNONE . . oot et 3,785 2,685
$ 356,785 392,318
Capital equipment and repairs:
Information Economy Initiative. . ............ ..., $ 307,575 247,219
Board technoloay initiative. . ............ .. .. i 375,000 375,000
Eaquipment, furnitureand renovations. . .. ..................... 510,000 510,818
Busses/service vehicles. . . ...t 571,200 43,293
Sherwood Park Technoloay Refresh . .. ............. ... . ... 67,190
$ 1,763,775 1,243,520
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CAPE BRETON-VICTORIA REGIONAL SCHOOL BOARD

Schedule C - Supplementary Details of Net Grant Costs
Year ended March 31, 2001

From time to time, the Board receives funding for specific expenditure purposes. The Board accounts

for such fundinga on a net expenditure basis so as not to distort the comparison of

its actual

expenditures within the context of their budgetary framework. A summary of the total funding anc

related expenditures for the vear is presented bel ow:

Program Revenue Expenditure Net Cost
Childvouthservices.......................... $ 78,990 78,990
Anti-raCism. . ... 13,574 13,574
Specialed . ......... 12,160 12,160
Readinarecovery ............cooviiiiiii.n. 6,769 6,769
Atrisk - AfricanCanadians. . ................... 46,519 56,204 9,685
242dearee. ... 44,775 45,430 655
Breakfastproagram.............c.coiiiiin.. 71,462 71,462
Industry Canada. . ..., 55,644 58,891 3,247
Conservatory of music. ........ooviiennn... 22,844 22,844
YOUthrecovery . ... 12,974 13,315 341
Cornwallis& Cusack ......................... 12,699 12,699 -
Endlishassecondlanquage. .................... 2,845 2,845
School toWork Northside. . .. .................. 17,513 17,513 ---
Technoloay-J Rod........................... 2,456 6,431 3,975
Heritage. . ... 2,981 2,981
PageMaster . ... 775 775
GraSStO0tS . v v ittt et e 19,475 19,475 ---
Summer Technoloay . ..., 9,669 15,009 5,340
Summer Breakfast. .. ....... ... . il 3,400 5,280 1,880
Neighborhood Access. . ..., 5,900 5,900 ---
N.S. International Students. .. .................. 27,326 27,326 ---
Baddeck. . ............ 54 54
GeorgeD.Lewis. .......coiiiii i 1,702 1,702
MOITISION. . ..ot 1,202 1,202
SELMIKES. .o 532 532
Svdney Mines. . ... 1,905 1,905
SPEC . .. 2,139 2,139
Thompson. ............c i 3,997 3,997
Rankin. . ... 1,509 1,509
MalcolmMunroe. . ... 1,589 1,589
MacLennan. ... 426 426
MacDonaddComplex . ..., 1,911 1,911
Dr.T.L.Sullivan..............ooiiiii... 1,450 1,450
Donkin. ... 1,543 1,543
Breton EducationCtr.. ............ ..., 4,064 4,064 -
Whitney Pier Memorial. ....................... 54 54
Bridoeport . ... 527 527
Cabot. ... 525 525
Worker's Compensation. . .. .........ccvvvinin... 17,254 17,254

$ 495879 $ 538,256 $ 42,377
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AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Capital District Health Authority

We have audited the statement of financial position - operating and capitd fund of the
Capital District Health Authority (the "CDHA) as at March 31, 2001 and the statements of
fund  balances, revenues and  expenditures operating fund, and cash flow for the
year then ended. These combined financia statements are the responsibility of the CDHA's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generaly accepted auditing standards .  Those
standards require that we plan and peform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the combined financid statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test bass, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in  the

financial  statements. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these combined financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia
position of the CDHA as a March 31, 2001 and the results of its operations and the
changes in its cash flows for the three months then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Chartered Accountants

Hdlifax, Canada
May 18, 2001
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Operating

Current

CAPITAL DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Financial Position - Operating and Capital Funds
asat March 31, 2001

Cash & short term investments. . .. ..

Accounts receivable

Due from Department of Health.. . . ..
Due from Department of Finance. . ..
Due from CDHA Foundation. . ......
Due (to) fromother fund...........

Inventories (note 3)

Prepaid expenses

Restricted cash and short-term
investments (notes2and®6) . ......

Capital assets (note 4)

Current

Accounts payable and accrued

lighilities. ... ...

Deferred revenue (note5) ..........

Dueto PDDP....

Restricted liabilities

(notes 2 and 6)

Employee future benefits

(notes 2 and 7)

Operating surplus. . .

Investment in capital assets..........

Operating Capital Total Total
Fund Fund 2001 2000
(in thousands)

ASSETS
$ 40,919 $ - $ 40,919 $ 38,805
25,960 25,960 32,365
25,431 25,431 15,415
30,834 30,834 22,813
225 225 2,400
(13,034) 13,034
4,367 4,367 4,744
2,059 2,059 2,285
116,761 13,034 129,795 118,827
15,422 15,422 14,145
132,183 13,034 145,217 132,972
233,076 233,076 251,674
$ 132,183 $ 246,110 $ 378,293 $ 384,646

LIABILITIES
$ 67,254 $ - $ 67,254 $ 71,722
19,459 13,034 32,493 23,071
3,406 3,406 1,405
90,119 13,034 103,153 96,198
15,422 15,422 14,145
105,541 13,034 118,575 110,343
26,631 26,631 22,813
132,172 13,034 145,206 133,156
FUND BALANCE

11 11 231
233,076 233,076 251,259
11 233,076 233,087 251,490
$ 132,183 $ 246,110 $ 378,293 $ 384,646

Contingencies and commitments (notes 9, 10 and 11)

See accompanying notes
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CAPITAL DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Fund Balances
Year ended March 31, 2001

OPERATING FUND

Balance, beginningof year ........ ... .. $
Net revenuesunder expenditures. . . ...ttt

Transfer equity tocapital fund . ......... ... ..

Balance, end of year. . ... $

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Funding, beginningofyear ........... ... .. .. ... $
Capital deficit funding from Department of Health. .. .....................
Transfer Home Supportcentral. . ...t
Capital funding for theyear (ScheduleC) ............ ... ... . . i ...

Accumulated amortization of capital funding, beginning

Of YA .o
Transfer Home Supportcentral. . ...t e
Amortization of capital deficit funding from Department of Health. . ... ......
Amortization of capital fundingfortheyear.............................

Accumulated amortization of capital funding, endofyear..................

Balance, end of year . ... $

2001 2000

(in thousands)
231$ (104,164)
(180) 104,395
51 231
40 —_—
11% 231
370,476 $ 280,643
65,421

112

7,620 24,412
378,208 370,476
(119,217) (83,447)
(40)
(10,660)
(25,875) (25,110)
(145,132) (119,217
233,076 $ 251,259

See accompanying notes
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CAPITAL DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Operating Fund
Year ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000

(in thousands)

Operating
Revenues (SchedUl@ A) . . ..ot $ 468,400 $ 484,010
Expenditures (ScheduleB) .. ... 484,599 483,814
(16,199) 196
Year 2000 - REVENUES . . .. oottt e e e e e e 3,271
Year 2000 - EXpenditures. . .. ..o oot 3,271
Net capital amortization. . ........vi i e 65
Resultsfrom operatingactivities. ........... ... i (16,199) 131

Research

Revenues (Schedule A) . ... ..o 13,088 12,132
Expenditures (ScheduleB) ... ... (11,811) (11,005)
1,277 1,127
Openingbalance. . ... 14,145 13,018
Ending fundsavailableforresearch. .......... ... ... ... i L. 15,422 14,145
Funds committed to futureperiods. . .. .......... o 15,422 14,145
Net revenues under expenditures beforedeficit funding................. (16,199) 131
Operating deficit funding received from Department of Health. .. ............ 16,019 104,264
Net revenuesunder expenditures. . .......oviiiin e, $ (180)% 104,395

See accompanying notes
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CAPITAL DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Statement of Cash Flow
Year ended March 31, 2001

2001 2000
(in thousands)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net revenues under expenditures- operatingfund. . ....................... $ (16,199)$ 196
Items not requiring cash
DEPIECI A ON. . . ottt e e 25,875 25,175
Amortization of capital funding. . ........... ... (25,875) (25,110)
Changes in non-cash working capital items. .. ........ ... ... oL (1,899 (101,684)
Cashused inoperatingactivities. ......... ... i, (18,098) (101,423)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating deficit funding from Departmentof Health . ... .................. 16,019 104,264
Capital deficit funding from Departmentof Health. . ...................... 55,177
Transfer of surplus retention fund to Department of Health. . ............... (1,434)
Transfer of equitytocapital fund . .. ........ .. i (40) ---
Capital funding (ScheduleC). . ... e 7,620 24,821
Repayment of longtermdebt .. ....... ... . (563)
Transfer of operating surplusto Department of Health. . ................... (68)
Addition of Home Support net capital funding . .......................... 72
Employee future benefitsliability. . . ... i i 3,818 22,813
Funding of employee future benefits liability from Department of
FINaNCE . . o (22,813)
Cash provided by financing activities. .. ......... ... .. .. 27,489 182,197
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital assetsacquired (ScheduleC) . ... (7,277) (24,349)
Cash used ininvestingactivities. ............ ... o i, (7,277) (24,349)
Restricted FUNAing . . .. ... e 1,277 1,165
Net cash inflow duringtheyear .......... ... .. . ... 3,391 57,590
Cash position, beginningof year .. .......... . i 52,950 (4,640
Cash position,end Of year .........coiiii e 56,341 52,950
Cash position, end of year iscomprised asfollows:
CasN . o 40,919 38,805
Restricted cash and short-terminvestments. . ..., 15,422 14,145
$ 56,341 $ 52,950

See accompanying notes
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CAPITAL DISTRICT HEALTH AUTHORITY

Notesto Combined Financial Statements
March 31, 2001

Natur e of the Organization

Effective January 1, 2001 Bill 34 of the Province of Nova Scotia created the Capita District
Hedlth Authority (CDHA). The CDHA includes the QE11 Headth Sciences Centre, the Nova Scotia
Hospital and the Capital District Health Authority (the former Central Regiona Health Board). All
entities are governed by a single Board of Directors.

The CDHA isanon profit entity and, as such, is exempt from income tax.

Significant Accounting Policies

Fund Accounting

The CDHA maintains its combined financial statements on a fund accounting basis.  Separate

funds have been established to distinguish operating activities from capital activties.

The operating fund contains the non-capital operating assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenditures of the CDHA related to the provision of hospital services.

The capital fund contains the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and related
capital funding, net of accumulated amortization.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost, being the lower of cost and replacement costs.

Capital Assets
Capital Assets are recorded at cost and depreciated at the following annual rates:

Halifax Infirmary building 50 years straight-line
Other buildings and additions 20 - 50 years straight-line
Equipment 10 years straight-line

L easehold improvements 10 years straight-line
Information technology 5 years straight-line
Parking 5 years straight-line
Paving 5 years straight-line

Restricted cash and short-term investments and restricted liabilities
Restricted cash and short-term investments are designated for restricted purposes by independent
funders, by regulation, or by resolution of the CDHA's Board of Directors. The
corresponding restricted liability represents the unexpended fund balance.

Capital contributions

Capital contributions are recorded as capital funding and amortized to income using the same rates
as depreciation expense related to the capital assets purchased. Capital contributions for non-
depreciable capital assets are recorded as direct increases in the investment in capital.

Employee Future Benefits Plans

As a March 31, 2001, the CDHA retroactively adopted the method of accounting for employee

future benefits required by The Canadian Ingtitute of Chartered Accountants recommendations
in Section 3461, Employee Future Benefits. The Province of Nova Scotia is funding the liability
and additional expenses incurred by the QE11 in association with adoption of Section 3461. The

main components of this change are as follows:
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» Costs for employee future benefits other than pensions are accrued over the periods in
which the employees render services in return for these benefits. The costs associated
with non-pension future benefits were previously expensed as incurred.

* A liability for employee future benefits of $26,631,000 has been included in the financia
statements in the current year. The liability has been assumed by the Province of Nova
Scotia so an offset of the same amount has been recorded as a receivable from the Department
of Finance. The current year's net expense incurred for future employee benefitsis $3,816,000.

Inventories
2001 2000
(in thousands)
DIUGS . .« v ettt e e e e e $ 2,704 $ 2,498
FOOO. . . e 8 17
General SUPPLIES . .o e e 1,406 1,992
Medical SUrgical. ......coii e 249 237
$ 4367 $ 4,744
Capital Assets
2001
Accumulated
Cost Depreciation
(in thousands)
Land. ..o $ 324 $
Land IMprovemMENtS . . . ..ot ottt 692 130
Halifax Infirmary building . ........... . i 110,023 9,865
Buildings& additions. . ............ i 74,641 31,764
EQUIDMENE . . oot 152,883 101,518
Leasehold improvements. . .. ...t 42,717 15,452
Informationtechnology. . . ... 32,497 22,144
Parking . . ..o 20 5
PaVing . .. e 313 156
414,110 181,034
Less: accumulated depreciation . . ..o oo e 181,034
$ 233,076

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the operating fund of $19,459,000 represents advance funding received
from the Department of Heath for the 2001/02 fiscal year. Deferred revenue in the capital fund of
$13,034,000 represents advance funding from the Department of Health, Partners for Care and
the QE11 Foundation for capital equipment to be purchased subsequent to March 31, 2001.

Restricted Cash and Short-term Investments and Restricted Liabilities

These assets and liabilities represent funds, the use of which is restricted by
various conditions as described in note 2.

2001
(in thousands)
Centrefor Clinical RESEAICN . . . . oo oot $ 13,669
[ 157 1,753
$ 15,422
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Employee Future Benefits
The CDHA has provided for retirement allowances and life insurance as follows:

2001
(in thousands)

Accrued benefit liability

Beginning balance, retiringallowances. . ... i $ 22,813
Current servicecostsfortheyear. . ... 1,725
Interest cost dUriNg the Y ar . ... ... i e e e e e 1,672
Amortization of eXperienCeI0SS. . . ..ottt 76
Estimated fiscal paymentsfor NSH employees. .. ... o (135)
Ending balance, retiringallowances. . . ... e 26,151
Lifeinsurance benefits. ... ... 480
Ending balance, accrued benefit liability. .. ......... .. ... .. $ 26,631

2001

(in thousands)
Employee futur e benefis expense

CUMENE SEIVICE COSES . o v vttt e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 1,725
Interest onaccrued benefits. . . .. ... 1,672
Amortization of eXperieNnCeI0SS. . . ..ottt 76
Estimated fiscal paymentsfor NSH employees. .. ... (135)
Lifeinsurance benefits. . .. .. oo e e 480

$ 3,818

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in mesuring the company's employee future benefits
are as follows (weighted-average assumptions) as at March 31, 2001:

Retirement Allowance LifeInsurance
Discount rate 6.56% 7.5%
Retirement % at age 65 50.0%
Average age of employees - QE11 415 ---
Average age of employees- CDHA 4.1 ---
Average age of employees - NS Hospital 431 -
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets 7.50%
Future mortallity rate 20.0%
Rate of compensation increase 3.0%

Pension Funds

Public Service Superannuation Fund

Most former employees of the Victoria General Hospital ("VGH"), Cancer
Treatment and Research Foundation ("CTRF"'), Nova Scotia Hospita ("NSH"), Public Health
and Drug Dependency of the centra Regiona Hedth Board belong to the Public Service
Superannuation Fund ("the Plan"). The Plan is funded by equa employee and
employer  contributions. The employer's contributions are included in the CDHA's
operating expenses. The Nova Scotia Government Department of Finance administers the
Plan.. The CDHA is not responsible for any unfunded liability in this plan.

Nova Scotia Association of Health Organizations

Employees of the former Nova Scotia Rehabilitation Centre ("NSRC") and Camp Hill Medica
Centre ("CHMC")and the Centra Regiona Health Board ("CRHB") participate in the multi-employer
pension plan administered by the Nova Scotia Association of Health Organizations. The most
recent actuarial valuation was conducted as a December 31, 19